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i. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT
a) Background Information

The National Council for Persons with Disabilitics, (NCPWT), is a non-commercial State Agency established in
2004 by an Acl of Parliament (Persons with Disabilities Act, 2003). NCPWD is under the Ministry of Labour
and Social Protection. The Council is headed by a Board of directors drawn from key Government Ministries and
Organization offfor Persons with Disabilities. The day to day running of the Council iz conducted by the
secretariat headed by FExccutive Thrector, The Coumneil works in eollaboration with government Ministries,
|Jepartments and Agencies, 1L also works with institutions, associalions and organizations of and for Persons with
Iisahilitics in ils endeavour to promole and protect the righis of Persoms with Disabilities’ agenda in
development.

Our Vision
A hamier free socicly for Persons with Dasabilities™

Our Mission
“To promote and protect equalization of opportunities and realization of human rights for PWDs to live decent
livelihoods™

Our Core Values
1. Inclusivity
The Council is dedicated to all its stakeholders repardless of their diversity.

2. Human dignily
The Couneil believes that our elienls are worthy of honourfrespect. We act with self-esteem, impariiality,
politeness, respect and cowtesy to clients at all times.

3. Lquality and equity
We uphold Faimess and impartiality for all frrespective of gender. region, socio-cultural bucksround and
mariial status,

4. Integrity
We will uphold the highest ethical standards, demonstrating honesty and fairness in all our operations at all the
levels of the Council

5. Roesults Chienled
We focus on achieving our objectives as sel in all operations, We will uphald competence, high standards,
reliahility and excellence in our work.

b) Principle Activitics

The Council derives its mandate from the Persons with Disabilities (PWD) Act, 2003 which established it and
outline its core functions as follows:
I. Toissoc adjustment orders under Section 24 of The Persons with Disabilities Act, 2003,
2. To lormulate and develop policies designed to achieve equal opportunities for Persons with
Disabilitics, to rehabilitate Persons with Disabilitics, protect and promote their rights.
3. To corporate with the government duting national census to ensure that accorate fipnes of PWDs are
established n the country for purposes of planning.
4. 'To recommend measures to prevent discrimination against Persons with Disabilities.
5. 'To regisler Persons with Disabilities. institutions, associations and organizations where services are
provided for them.
6, Toprovide assistive devices and other cquipment to Persons with [hsabilities
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
7. To pay stipend to persons with severe disabilities and are therefore not trainable in any skills,
8 To carry out measures for public information on the rights of Persons with Disabilitics and the
provisions of the PWDs Act.
¢}  Key Management
The day-to-day management of the affairs of the Council is run by
Board of Dircelors
Executive Director as the Avcounting Officer

L]

[

= Head of Departments and

»  County Disabilily Service Officers

d) Tiduciary Managemeni

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30 June 2022 and who had
direet fiduciary responsibility were;

L Exeeutive Director . : TTarun Maalin Hussan
2 lead ol Finance & Accounts S Catherine Wameyo
3. Head ol Programimes James Ndwiga
4, Head of Human Resource and Adminisiration | Ruth Ruraa
= Head of Procurement ) Lsther Muiruri
| B | Mead of Public Relations and Communications ~ Francis Anyenda
LT Head of Tnternal Audit _ _Andrew Manyara
8. Chief Finance & Accounts Offieer | Anne Kagwi B
[ Chief Legal Officer Susan Wekesa
10, Chief Disability Services Officor | Rosabel Githinji

¢) Fiduoeiary Oversight Arrangements

The baard has eslahlished four commilices to provide fidueiary oversight on management,
l. The Minance and Progurement Commitice
2. Aundit and Risk Committes
1. Programmes, [uman Besource and Administration Committee
4. Board of Trustees

f) Registered Offices

Mulional Council T Persons with Disabilitics
Waiyaki Way, Opp. ABC Place

P.0). Box 6637 7-00800

Nairobi, Kenva
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KLY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

v|Page

Mational Council Tor Persons with Disahilities
Mountain Yiew Oflice

Touse Mo, 195

P.0, Box 66377-00800

Mairohi, Kenya

g} NCPWD Contacts

Tel: +234-20-23759%4, 254-20-23 1462 1, O709-107000, O800-724333

B-mail: mfo@nepwd.po ke
Website: www. nepwd. goke

k) Principal Bankers

Kenya Commercial Bank
Saril Centre Branch

PO, Box 14959
NMairobi, Kenya

Tel: +254-20-3747576
Fax: 1254-20-3747576

i) Independent Auditors

Aunditor General

Office of Auditor General
Aomiversary Towoers, Tniversity Way
P.CY. Box 30084-00000

MNairobi, Kenya

Tel: +254-20-335777

Fax: ~234-20-330824

i} Priocipsl Legal Adviser

The Attorney Gencral

State Law Office and Department of Juslice
[Tarambee Avenue

PO Box 40112

Crty Square 00200

MNairobi, Kenya
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1l THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Michael Muncne Independent Non-Executive Bircetor P,
Date of Birth: | 1982 Date of | 9l Feb, 2022
Appointment |
Key (Ph i Universal  Design  and  Disability

Cualifications: | Mainstreaming
| Master of Arts in Sustainable Design
Postgraduaice Diploma - Project Management
Bachelor of Arts in lnterior Design
Work ZM0 To Daie — Tecurer and Researcher at
Experience: University of Mairnhi
Diisability Mainstreaming Expert
Cirant Research Projects on Disability.

Chair: Awdit Commitiee

Mr. Joseph Kariringah Levinu [ndependent Non-Lxceutive Direetor

Date of Birth: rate of
| Appointment _ _
key Diploma in Community Development and  Social
Cualifeations: | Work
Cerlificale in Law Enforcement and Peace Building
Injiiativies
= | Human Rights Training
Wark ! Worked #s Data Baseline Swvey Officer at World
Experience: | Vision Kenya
CCurrently  working in VSO Kenva in Right 1o
| Education and Gfe w Children with  Disabilivy,
i Ccucator Facilitator in Disability Chaniploning,

5th Feb, 2022

Mamrher: Audit Commirtae

M. Victor Ochieng Onyungo Non-Executive Dircetor / I'S Representative, The National Freasury

Date of Birth: | 1979 | Date of Gth Fch, 2022
. | Appointment _

Kew | Master of Business Administration (Finance)

Chualiiieations;

Wark | Currently Assistant Dircctor of  Buodset st the

Expevicnce: | Watiomal Treasory, Buodpel Department where currenl

Cresponsibiliies melude  preparation of  policy
Cdocurments ineluding the Budget Polley Statement
| (BPS), tie Budget Review and Outlock Paper
Member: Audit Commitree; (BROP) and participating in the preparation of the
Fhincice o Procurement (ommittice | Wational Government Budget,

- Previously served as a0 Prineipal Finance Officer at
t the Mational Treasury and as 4 Senior Economist in
 the State Department for Planning.
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Iw Sylvia Movia Mothabs — Independent Non-Ixeculive Direcing

. Dhate of Birth: | 1984 Date of @th Feb, 2022
! Appointment
Kew Diploma in Graphic Design (Multimedia University)

Qualiheations: | Mark Tank & Art College
Certificate in Aulism
Certificate in Attention Deficit Hyperactivity

D¥isorder (ADHDY
4
. . Wik (iraphic dﬂs:gﬂm with 17 years ol experience in
Zp i ¢ Pr Experienee; Craphic Design,  Printing, Branding. Extensive
(f' e uxperience in Public Relations/Communication and
AT IR MNeurodevelopmental Disahility Advocacy,

She is the founder & Exceulive Director of Andy
: Speaks for Special Needs Persons A’mcﬂ
P Habiba H Mohamed: — Independent Nom=Exeentive Diroctrr

| 1977 Dite of Oth Feb, 2022
e S Appointment

Key | Member of the Roval College Pmummnc;n (MRCGT)
Califications: | Master in Medicine {Mhded)

Master in Public Health, Jomo Kenyatta University of
Apriculture & ‘Technology

Adivanced Certificate — Aviation Medicine (Avhied)
King's College Londan, United Kingdom

Bachelor of Medicine and DBachelor of Surgery

Date of Birth:

Mewmber: Finance & Procuwement (MBChBR), University of Glasgow, United Kingdom
Comnittes
Work Currently a [lealth Systems Strenglhening Specialist,.
Cxperience: a Family Physician and Awviation Medical Asscssor.

She has previously worked at the Department [or
International Development (DFIMY UK AIDY) Somalia
as a Health Adviser and has over |3 vears
expericnce in medicine as a general practitioner and
health advisor.

Mz Mercy Mupgure Gichunse

Date ol
Appointment
Eev | Musters in Thilosophy Dlsabrllw Rights, University
Qualifications: | of Pretora

Masters of A, Gender and Development Studies,
Kenvatta Lniversity

Bachelor of Arts Education in English and Literature,
Kenvatta University

Post Grraduate Diploma in Publie Relations Marketing
and Advertisement - ICM

Date af leth:

l 1984 Oth l'eb, 2022

Chaire Programaes. Human
Resource drd Administvalion

Chanriitis Work safaricom PLC, Support Analyst
Lxperience: Safaricom PLC. Diversity and Inclusion Champion
Ability  Africa Media, Founder and FExceutive
+ Director.
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- Ms. Zena Atetwe Jalcnga Independent Non-Executive Dircetor

Diate of Biith:

| 9th Feb, 2022
| Appointment |
Key | Post Gradoate Diploma — Kenva School ol Taw
Qualifications: | Bachelor of Law (LLE)

Date of

World She currently works at her own Law firm (Rashid &

Exparience! Rashid Advocates) which focoses on Emplovment

and Labour relalions Law, Envivonmental and Land

Member: Programmes, Huneon issues,  Commercial law, Human Righls &

Revource and Administration Constitutional Taw, She handles litigation as well as
Cimiice other dispute resolutions mechanism,

Te.Kenneth Bennrd Orving——— Non-Excentive Bircetor/ PS5 Representative; Stale Bepartment for
Sock] Proteetion '

Date of Birth: | 1969 Daie of 14 July 2022
i Appomiment

Koy | PhDD in Leadership and Governance (JKUAT)

Qualifieations: | Masters in Fducational Administration and Planning

C(Kenyalla University)
- Bachelor of Education (Mai University)
Diploma in Human Resource Management

| Strategic Leadership program-KT1a

; Senior Management Course-KSG-Maombasa
Worl | Lle is the Director of Human Resource Management
Exporicnce: at the State Department for Social Protection. Senlar
Citizens and Special Programmes. 1le has over 28
wears™ exporicncee in Public Serviee in more than 10
minisiries.

Member: Progranmnes Contmitiee:
Member: Fingnee Conmiittes

_—H_ﬁ!rm_l I'-"lnniim-H:-'issa!l- = —Exceutive Diree

Date of Rirth: | 1978 Date of | 17 December,
i Appointment 2020
Kev Master of Arts (Public Administralion)

Qualifications: | Bachelor ol Arls m Envirommental Studics (Planning
and Management)
Ford Fellow, 2019

Work He has over 20 years’ experience in Public Service
Lxperience: (Central Governance and Field Adminisiation) and
Community work, He has also served in the Boards
of numercus State and MNon-State Organisations,

viii |Page NCPWL- Annual Report & Financiol Statements 202 (/20122
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“Sosun Nafula Wekesn (“hiei"l.ergﬁll Officery A Corporation SECretary

Date of Birth: | 1986

| Date of
Appointment

|#* Drecamber,
2020

Koy Bachelor of Taw (LLB)
Qualifications: | Post Graduate Diploma in Law (KSL)

Certified Professional Mediator

MTV127/01/19

Advocate of the TTigh Cowrt of Kenya

X LSK No. P.105/10094/13 ]
Work She has @ vears” experience m the [epal profession as
Experience an Advacate of the [ligh Courl of Kenya and worked
for bath public and private institutions oceupying
ditferent job fitles,
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HL. THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

v, Sanison Mpipayiai Tipape
Mate of Birth:

Wark Lxperience:

' '15.. Aldis Ahdi AhEnla
Tate of Birth:

Work Experience:

Dare of Hum
K::v Quah [ications;

Worle Experience:

Me. Abdulhakim Ware Shehie

Diate of Birth:
Key Qualifications:
Waork Experience:

Diate of Birth:
Koy Qualilications,

Work Experience:

Kew Qualifications:

Independent Non-Fxecufive Chafrperson
1977 | Date of Appointment | 5% May 2019

Masters of Science in Governance and Leadership
Bachelor of Business Managemenl (Human Reésource
Management)

Higher Diploma in Human Resource Management
Dhploma in Personnel Management

He is the former Member of County Assembly, Kajiado
- County. Previously worked at the NCPWD (2001 1o
| 2013) a5 Head of Human Resource.

Independent Non-Execntive Director
1978 Date of Appointment | 5" May 2019

Worked g5 a Persons with Disabilities representative al
the MNational Government Affirmative Action Fund
(MNGAALY and a Civie Edueator for Pastoralist Women
far Health and Education in lsiole County

Independent Non-Executive Pirector
Date of Appointment | 5% May 2019
Diploma in Information Technology

He 1s currently an ICT Systems Officer at Riara Group
of Schools, Nairobi.

Independent Nou-Excentive Director
1987 Dale o Appoinmment | 5% May 2019
Diploma in Speecial Inclusive Education
ITe is currently a Board Member at Hola Municipality
Coumeil and Chairperson at Jenga Jamii CBO. He served
as a Civie Fducator at Muslims for Human Rights
[MIIHIJET‘_: Tana River County,

Independent Nop-Ixcemtive Director
1960 Dale of Appointment | 5 May 2019
Master af Arts, Social Work
Bachelor of Arts, Sociology
She is cureently the Depuly Director lor Social
Development at the Ministry of Labour and Sccial
Protection thit deals with community development
prograrmmes  Lhal includes Persons with Disahilities,
Older persons and Families, She bas over 30 vears’
expericnoe

NCPWD- Amnual Report & Financial Statements 202172022
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W Peter Muchivi

Independont Nom=EKxeculive Tlirector
Dale of Birth: | 1973 Diate of Appointment | 3™ May 2018
Key Qualificalions: | Diploma in Business Management. Utalii College

| Diploma in Community Development. St John’s
College
Certificate in Leadership and Integrity, National
Democratic Institute
Bachelir of Arts, Community Development, Alrica
Mazarene Lniversily - Ongoing
Work Lxporience: He 5 the Director of Marriots Group of Companics Lid
und the National Chairman of League of Persons with
[Msabililics,

- Faevative Pireciar = =%
Diate of Birth; 1978 Date ol Appointment | 1* December 2020

Key Qualifications: Master of Arts (Public Administration)

Bachelor of Arts in Environmental Studies (Plaming
and Management)

Ford Fellow, 2019

Waork Experience; | He is the Exceuntive Director of MNational Counell Tor
Persons with Disabilities. Heo has over 20 vears’
experience in Public Service (Central Goverpance and
Field Administration) and Community work., He has
also served in the Boards of numerous State and Non-
State Orpanisations.

Chicl Legul Officer/ Ap. Corporation Scerelary
Dale ol Birth: 1986 Date of Appointment | 2% Febroary 2021

Key Qualifications: Bachelor of Law (LLB)
Post Ciraduate Diploma in Law (KSL)

Certilicd Mrofessional Mediator

MTV127/0111Y

Advocate of the High Court ol Konya

LSK No, P.105/10094/13

Waork Experience: - She has 9 years” cxperience in the legal profession as an
Advocale ol the High Court of Kenva and worked for
bioth public and private institutions occupying different
job titles,

xi|Page NCPWE- Annval Report & Financial Stciements 2021/2022
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V. MANAGEMENT TILAM

Harun Maalim Hassan
' Digsignation

Daie of Appointment

Key Qualifications

Dresignation

Date of Appaintment
Key Qualifications

Dresignation

Date of Appoiniment
Kev Cualilications

Designation
Diate of Appointinent

ey Qualilications

Executive [Mrector
I December 2020
Master of Arts In Public Administration

Bachelor of Arts in Environmental Studics (Planming and

hManagement)
Ford Fellow, 201 3

Assistant Divector Finance & Accounts

August 2009

Master of Business Administration (Finance)
Diploma, Computer Studies,

Certilicd Public Accountamt

TCPAK Na. 8964

Certificale, Strategic Leadership Development
| Programnie

Certificate, Senior Management Course

Assistant Director, Disability Services

- Septetmber 2010

Master of Business Administration, Strategic
Management

Bachelor ol Economics and Sociology,
Diploma. Organization Development
Certificate, Stratcgic Leadership Development
Programme

Certilicate, Senior Management Course

- Assistant Director Human Rosource & Administration
Octoher 2014

Master of Arvts, liternations] Studies

Bachelor of Arts, Governmen! Administration and
Linguistics

THRM No, 6034

Certificd Public Secretary Part |

Certified Human Resource Professional (CHRP-K)
Certificate. Strategic Teadership Development
Programme

Certifieate; Senior Managemoent Course

xii | Page NCEWD- Aneeal Report & Financial Statements 2021/2022



NATIONAL COUNCIL FCR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Annual Report & Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2022
Susmn Nafota Wikcsa

' —— Designation
1 Date of Appointment

Koy Qualifications

Anne Muathon Kagwi

Chief Legal Officer
Fehruary 2021

Bachclor of Taw (LLE)

Post Graduate Diploma in Law (KS1.)
Certified Professienal Mediator
MTI1/127/01/19

Advooale of the High Court of Kenya
LSK No. P.10SA00943

Ticsignation

Date of Appeintment
Key Dualifications

Francis Anyenda

Designation
Date of Appointment

Key Cualifications

Designalion

Dale of Appomtment
Key Qualifications

Andrew Kathurima VManyara
Designation

Trate of Appointment
Kew Qualilications

xiii | I'age

Chict Finance & Accounts Officer

Oetober 2010

Miagter of Business Administration. Finance
Bachelors of Business Administration, Finance &
ALCounis

Certifled Public Accountant

ICPAK No. 9558

Certificate. Senior Management Caouise

Assistant Director. Public Relatons & Communications
Oelober 200 2

Bachelor of Information Science
Post Graduate Diploma, Mass Communication
Certificate. Senior Management Course

senior Supply Chain Management Oflcer

Octaber 2020

Masters of science Procuwrement and Contract
Mhanagement

Bachelor of Purchasing and Supply Chain Management
Diploma in Purchasing and Supply Chain Management
Advanced Certificate in Business Manageienl

KISM Mo, 64286

Chief Internal Auditor

Mlay 2019

Rachelor of Commerce, Accounling
Cerlilicid Public Accountant

ICPAK Mo, 20015

Member ol Institute of Internal Auditors
Member No. 2013172

NCPWD- Annual Reporr & Financial Statements 2021/2022



NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Annual Report & Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2022
Rosabel Wan]ilku Githingi

Diesignation
Dhate of Appointment
Kev Qualilicalions

Designation
Diate of Appointment
Koy Qualifications

Designalion
Date of Appointment

Key Qualifications

Joseph Malna Mwang

Designation
Date of Appointment
Kev Cualifications

Daniel Njuzumna

Designation
[Jale of Appointment
Key Qualifications

xiv|Page

Chiel Thisability Services (Officer
May 2012

Master ol Soeial Practice

Bachelor ol Arts in Social Sciences. Economics and
Sociology

Diploma. Projeet Management

Certificate, Senior Management Course

Senior Dhisability Services Ofhcer

Feh 2011

- Master of Project Planning and Management

| Advaneed Diploma in Projeet Management
Bachelor of Social Work and Social Adminisiration
Certificate, Senior Mangoement Courze

Lizability Services Officer
| December 2014

Bachelor of Education. Special Education
Certificate, Senior Management Course

Chiel Economist
Bay 2012

Rachelor of Arts, Beonomics
| Certificate, Senior Management Course

Senior 1T OfMeer
October 2013
Bachelor of Science, Computer Applications
Iiploma, Computer Studies.

Ao N+

CSK No. 115842

Certificate, Senior Munagement Course

NCPWD- Anpual Report & Financial Statements 2021/2022
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¥. CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

1 am pleased to present to you the Annual Report and Financial Statements for Mational
Couneil fir Persons with Disabilitics for the year ending 30" June 2022,

The year under review was one of volatility with continued impact from Lthe Covid-19
pandemic and unprecedented global commedity inflation driven by supply constraints
and demand spikes. Despite the challenges, the Council continued to deliver on its
mandate as provided for in the Persons with Disabilities Act 2003, We made
achievements in many areas especially towards improving our services to reach all
Persons with Disabilities,

Ohur achievemeni during the year is largely attributed to the cohesiveness and commitment of my Board and
the stall of the Council. We also atlvibule our success o the support that we continued to get from Persons
with Disabilities across the country and other stakeholders,

During the year, we were able 1o make major changes in our operstions, In December 2021, His Excellency
the President of the Republic of Kenya launched our new registration swstem. which is aimed at
revolulionizing the registration of Persons with Disabilitics, The new system addresses the perennial
challehpges that the Council has continued to face in repistering Persons with Disabilitics, Some of these
challenges inchide delavs in issuance of the repistration cards, cases of illegal registralion of Porsons with
Disabilities amaong others, In the new system, the dizability assessment report that is signed by the Director of
Medical Services in Nairobi will now be signed at the County level by the County Director of Medical
Services.

Further, during the vear under review, we began the process ol last tracking the Analization of the review of
the Persons with Disabilities Act 2003, This was witnessed by the cfTorls made by the Council to ensure that
Persons with Disabilities across the country submitted their memeranda after the Persons with Disahilities Bill
2021 went through the Tirst reading at the Mational Assembly. The Bill has since passed through the National
Assembly and is currently at the Senate. The passing ol the Bill at the Senate will have far reaching impact in
terms of transforming the National Council for Persons with Disabilities as well as enhaneing the rights and
privileges of Persons with Disabilities in Kenyva.

Anather key milestane during the vear was the appointment of new Board members. The Cabinet Secretary [or
Public Service, Gender, Senior Citizens AlTairs and Special Programmes, gazetied a new Doard on 10™ March
2022 to serve for the next three years. The Doard members are drawn Trom various professions. We ave
confident that they will bring iresh ideas that will be instrumental in enabliing the Council deliver on its
teamdale,

While the 2021/22 year had it own share of challenges, we look forward to the new year with optimism an
how much we can achieve. | am elated (o announce that the National Treasury approved our budset proposal
for an Autism and Developmental Disabilities programme. The programme is aimed at supporting activities
targeting persons with autism and other developmental disabilitics. Tt will focus on early identification and
management, therapy services, essential drugs and tests as well as advocsey campaigns. We will engage
stakehaolders in developing the programme’s implementation guide.

Farging and strengthening partnerships with key stakeholders continued to be our key strategy of promating
in¢lusion of Persons with Disabilitics. In the last couple of months, we were able o strengthen partnerships
with various stakehclders. Among these was the Ministry of Tlealth that we partnered with and together with
uther stakeholders en the development of the new guidelines for assessment and registralion of Persons with
Disabilitics,
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Early in Decemnber 2021, we signed a Memorandum of Understanding with KCB Bank Kenya Lid. o revamp
our LPQ Fmancing programme.  The LPO Financing Programme supports businesses of persans with
disabilities that are registered with the Natiomal Treasury under Access to Government Procurement
Opportunities (AGPO) W finance LPOs, LSOs and contracts awarded by Government procuring entities.

This suppart was introduced to improve financial capacity of Persons with Disabilities registered businesses to
undertake procurement under the AGPO affirmative action initiative. The LPO financing programme offers
Persons with Disabilities an opporlunily to access businesses they would otherwise not. The programme was
temporarily halied due to some challenges including delayed payments by procuring cntities and default by
Persons with Disabililics businesses financed.

Geing forward we intend to strengthen and extend partnerships with mare stakeholders in the coming years.
We believe that addressing challenges faced by Persons with Disabilities requives a multi-sectoral approach.

Dr. Michael Muhene
Acting Chairperson
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¥I. REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

It is with greal pleasure thal | release the perfinmance of the Mational Council for
Persons with Disabilities for the Financial Year 202122, The yoar under review can
be viewed as an extracrdinary one lor the Counceil, As we continued to navigate the
post COVID-19 pandemic, we continued to serve our clients m complisnce with the
government of Kenya COVID-19 protocols as well as ensuring that Persons with
[hsabilities across the country aceess our services seamlesshy,

During the year, we improved on some of our programmes to enhance efficiency
and effectivencss in service provision lor greater impact and improved wellbeing of
Persons with Disabilities.  Through this strategy, we believe we will be able to
empower Persons with Disabilities as well as promote inclusion in all scelors of development.

Cur LPO financing programme which had taken a hiatus dve to increased default rate by beneficiarics was
reorganized and relaunched affer a two-yvear sospension. The new look LPO financing programme will be
administered by KCUB Bank Limited after entering inlo a Memorandum of Understanding with the Council in
December 2021, A Committee for vetting the application was constituled and the members trained by KCB
Bahl: Limited oh how the funds will be administered.

I am also pleased to announce that during the year, (he National Treasury approved a budget for our new
progranune - the Autism and Related Developmental Disability Programme which will commence in the
Financial Year 2022/23, The new programme has an annval budgetl of Kshs. 30 million and is cxpected to
suppaort 6,000 Persons with Autism and other related Developmental disabilities (Cerebral Palsy, Down
Synidrome, Epilepsy and Intellectual disabilities) in the country. The funds for the programme will be used
iowards early identilication and management, ineluding referral care; provision of therapy ie., diet therapy,
cccupational therapy, speech therapy, essential drugs and supplics; and provision of adult diapers for those
with severe developmental disability. In rolling out the programme, we have commenced engagement with
stakeholders in developing strategies for implementation:

In our effort to educate Persans with Disabilities on their rights and how to access justice, we started to offer
legal aid clinics through partnerships with key stakeholders in the legal fraternity. During the vear, we held
twao legal aid clinies in Mombasa and Nairobi in which clients were able o present their various legal issues
and cases for suppart. We intend to roll owt this activity in all the other regions so that Persons with
Disabilitics don’t have to travel lo Nairobi or Mombasa for the clinics. The clinies are held in partnership with
a nurmber of organizations ineluding, Sheria Mtaani, National Legal Ald Services, FIDA- Kenya, Office of the
Ombudsman, National Gender and Hguality Commission among others. The objectives of the elinics are to
provide legal advice/representation for Persons with Disabililies and also educate Persons with Disabilitics on
their rights and ways of accessing justice.

During the year under review, Kenyans were preparing for the general elections Lo be held in August 2022, Ta
ensure that Persons with Disabilitics actively participate in the electoral process, the Council continued to
advocate for an accessible and inclusive clectoral process, Ta this end, the Council was nominated as an ex-
officio member in the Disability Inclusion Comrdination Committee of the Independent Elecloral Boundaries
Commission (IEBC). Through this representation. the Council promoted and advocated lor a peacefu] and
gecessible clecloral process, This clearly demonstrated that our role in disability advocacy is vast and we have
i keep pushing om all fronts together with our partners 1o make our society more inclusive.

At the education fevel, we are cognizant of the challenges facing Persons with Disabilities in accessing
education. In this regard, the Council is making deliberate efforts 1o address the gaps in provision of
educational support for leamers with disabilities through the education scholarship programme which aims to
improve enrollment, retention and completion rates for Persons with Disabilities Another programme in place
is the Wezesha Scholarship Programme which provides supporl w non-disabled bright but needy students in
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Secondary schools, whose parents are Persons with Disabilities. In intal, we have nine education sponsorship
programmes implemented with the support of cwr partners - Lquily Group Foundation, Kenya Mipeline
Company, KCB Bank Limited among others,

In order to expand the financial base for education support, we are working with a number of state agencies
and the private sector to provide scholarships w leamers with disabilitics at all levels of education. To this end,
we have held consultations with a number of organizations at individual basis and through forums, One such
forum was a consultative meeting on Accessibility to Education for Persons with Disabilities in Kenya that
brought together 12 key stakeholders in the education sector.

As alluded 1o at the beginning, during this post COVID-19 perind, we continued to adjust our programmes in
contirmity with the COVID-19 government protocols. In this regard, we were able to provide some of our
services online. Further, we developed an online method of evaluating and seoring the MDAs in their annual
Performance Contract indicalor on disability mainstreaming, We will conlinue with this trajectory even in the
coming vears,

We have streamlined our Disability Mainstreaming department Lo take its central role of promoting disability
mainstreaming in the country. We deployed # senior staff to be in charge and developed various muidelines and
training manuals for Ministries, Departments and Agencies (MIDAs) in disabllity mainstreaming, We are
confident that this change will go a long way in promoting disability inelusion.

During the year, we faced several challenges. The Lxpressway that was recently completed is a serious
challenge to motorists and pedestrians coming te the Council offices. In addressing this challenge, we en aged
KENHA through a number of consultative mectings with a view for the contractor to provide safe crossing for
Persons with Disabilities. KENHA has so far linalized with the plans for providing a service road to access Lhe
Council and also erect bus stops. We will continue with the discussions during the linancial year 2022/23 and
also engage with ather partners (o cnsure that the crossing on the express way to our office is sale for aur
clients.

As our programmes continue to expand, we still experience the challenge of olfice space for our stafT and
clients visiting the Couneil offices especially al the headquarters. Our stalT are squeered in the little ofTice
space available and this greatly affects effective service delivery. To address this challenge, we are engaging
some of our partners to support us develop adequate offices for our stall. We have so far entered into an
agrecment with Kenya Pipeline Company whe have agreed to support the Couneil construct an office block.
Already the designs have been completed and awaiting ground breaking in the next financial year. Howover,
the support lrom the KPC will not be adequate to complete the building and the Council will continue o make
appeals to other donors for support. We also intend to approach the National Treasury towards this initiative.

As we commence the new [mancial year 2022723, we are optimistic that the year will be a transformative one,
[t 15 our hope that the finalization of the new law [or Persons with Disabilities by the Senate will go a long way
in transforming the lives of Persons with Disabilities and entrench inclusion in all sectars of development, On
eur part, we promise to work diligently and with commitment 1o serve Persons with Disabilities throughout the
country,

Executive Director
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VIIL STATEMENT OF COUNCIL PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED
OBJECTIVES FOR FY 2021/2022

Section 81 subsection 2 (1) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the accounting ofTicer to
include in the Financial Statement, a statement of the Couneil performance against predetermined objectives.

The Council has four strategic pillars and abjeclives within the current Strategic Plan for the 1Y 2018/201 %
202272023, These strategic pillars are;

Pillar |: Diata and Statistics on Persons with Disabilities:

Pillar 2: Empowerment of Persons with Disabilities;

Pillar 3: Disabilily Mainstreaming; and

Pillar 4: Organizational Capacity Strenpthening,

The Couneil develops its annual work plans based on the above four pillars. Asscssment of the Board’s
performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The Council achieved its performance
targels sel for the FY 2021/22 perind For its four strategic pillars, as indicated in the table below:

STRATEGIC PILLAR DATA AND STATISTICS ON PWDS

Ohjective Generate, maintain and disseminate reliable information on Persons
with Diisabilities (PWDs) in Kenya

Key Performanec Indicators | Activities _ Achicvements T s
i Mutnber of PW Ds regislered Register [O0,000 and issue , 24,997 PWDs registered, This under
| PWDs with Disability Cards | performance was due (o budgel cut
- during the year.

STRATEGIC PILLAR 2 EMPOWERMENT (3F PWHS
| Objective Empower PWDs for effective participation in all spheres of 1ite

Kev Performance Indicators | Activitics Achicvements

Mumber of Persons with Albinism | Provide sunscreen Iotions to | Provided Sunscreen lotions to 3,8(8
(MW AS) suppoited 5,000 PWAs. PWAs,
' Register 1,200 now PW As, Registered 648 PWAS
| Support awareness crealion supported awareness creation in 47
— _ in47 counties countics S
Mumber of PWSDs supported Provide cash transfers Lo Disbursed cash transfer funds Lo
' 47,000 Persons with Severe 37,023 PWSDs houscholds. The
| Disabilities (PWSDs) variance of 9,977 beneficiarics was
i Houscholds due o [PRS mismatch and natural
! = . | allvition -
| Number of groups supported Pravide economic | Provided grants to 301 PWDs self-
empowerment to 310 PWDs | help groups,
| | self- help groups Rl e
Mumber of businesscs supported Trovide 30 PWDs ownicd | The Council did not provide LPO
| husinesses with LPO [inancing due to budget cul.
| fmaneing | e ——
MNumber of PWDs supported | Provide 300 graduales of Provided tools of trade to 362 VRO
| vocativnal traiming with toals  praduates
of trade for sell=employment
| Number of PWDs supported Provide 4,000 needy Persons | Provided 3,223 assistive and
| with Disabilities with | supportive devices. he budget cut
' ~ assistive devices | affected support of devices Lo PWDs
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Mumber of "W Ds suppnrted I Provide education support o | Provided 2,169 hursaries and ;
| 2,200 Persons with schelarships to learners with 5
| Disabilities :11sabulmes This target was alTecled by
| | budget cut. _

Munther of Institutions supported Provide support to 20 Supported 13 PWD learing

learning institutions of instilutions. This target was affected

Persons wilh Disabilities to by budget cut.
| improve enrolment capacity
- ~ andlearning environment
| Number of organizations supported  Provide support to 37 Supported 43 DPOs with grants for
[ Mational Ihsabled Persons awareness and advocacy on disahility
Organizations lor advocacy ISSUES.

and awarencss aclivilics : |

Conduct Rasic sign language | 366 workers offering essential scrvices |
training skills course to 350 | were trained,

workers offering essential
SeTViCeE : !

SERATEGIC PILLARY — — DISABILITY MAINSTRE! \mwt,_

* Number of officers sup pm‘ted_

Objective To promote mainstreaming of disability in all sectors of socie
Key Perlormance Indieators Awtivities CAchicvenients

Number of institutions evaluated Evaluate 394 MDAs placed | Lvaluated 320 MDAs that
on perfarmance conteact on | implemented disability mainstcaming
_  disability mainstreaming indicator and reported to the Council,
Number of institutions audited  Conduet 100 accessibility Conducted aceessibility audits in 155

aundits in MDAs placed on MDAz,
P and prepare reports

: Repaort in place | Prepare an annual status Annual status reporl preparcd
| - report on disability
| mainstreaming

| STRATEGIC PILLAR 4 ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY STRENGTHENING

(b jective To strengthen the Council capacity for effective and efficient service
delivery
Key Performance Indicators | Activities Achievemenls
- Number of stalt trained | Train 60 Officers in various | Supported 63 officers in various
| capacity building courses, trainings, [
A | |
Performance Contrat raports - Implement the annual Cross culting indicators implemented |
- Performance Contracting as per the goidelines provided. |

cross cutting issues
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VI CORTORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Corporale governance entails struclures and system of rules, practices and processes by which an organization
is directed, controlled and held accountable, 11 encompusses anthority. accountability, stewardship, leadership,
direction and conirol exercised in organizations. It essentially invalves balancing the interests of the many
stakeholders in an ovganization, These include its stakeholders, management, customersichients, suppliers,
linanciers, government and the community. Corporate Governance sets frameworks [or achicving the
objectives of the organization, and creates benchmarks for the measurement of corporate performance and
disclosure.

The Council 15 guided by ils core values of Inclusivity, Human dignity; Equalily and equity; Integrity; Results
ariented which underpin the eouneil™s decision-making progesses. The Council has at all times endeavoured
delivery of its mandate to comply with the relevant legal principles and the highest ethical standards,

Principles and Guidelines Governing the Board
The Counctl embraces corporale povernance repulations, guidelines and principles govemning State
Caorporations, Dircetors and Stall as provided mainly in the following Acts:

= The various provisions of the Constitution of Kenya

= Persons with Disabilities Act, No. 14 of 2003

= The Public Finance Management Act, No, 18 of 2012,

® Ligal Notice No. 34 2015 (Public Finance Management Regulations)

*  Siwle Corporations Act, Chap 446 of the Laws of Kenya

= Leadership and Integrily Act, Moo 19 of 2002

= The Public Officers Cthics Act 2003,

= The Employment Act, 2007

s Pyblie Acdit Act, 2015

= The Public Procurcment and Asset Thisposal Act, Mo, 33 of 2015,

= Public Procurement (Amendment Mo. 2 Regulations 2015

= Mwongozo— The Code of Governance [or State Corporations

= Various (Guidelines from Office of the President, the Public Service Commission, Salaries and
Remuneration Commission and State Corporations Advisory Commillee

The code of conduct requires Directors 1o

= Act honestly and i geod faith at all times;

»  Exereise (the highest degree of care, skill and diligence in discharring duties;

= Actin the best interest of the council;

= Pxercise independent judgement at all times;

= Understand and accepl the prineiple of collective responsibility;

= Avold and disclose conflict of inlerest;

®  Maintain confidentiality of information shout the organisation,

= Pramale transparency and accountability al board level,

= Devole sullicient lime and commitment to carry out their responsibilities and attend to organisation’s
businicss And

*  Promote teamwork within the board and the organization

Board Charter

The DBoard has a Charter that defines the Board’s roles and responsibilities as well as funetions and structurcs.
This enables Board members 1o effectively contribute in governance of the Council by Facilitating independlent
Judgement, decision making and professional competencies. The charter does not replace or supersede any
statutory laws and regulations that govern the Council,
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The Council’s Board of Dircetors.

The Council’s Board of Directors is the body of appointed members who jointly averses the activities of the
Couneil. The board is expected to provide strategic direction, exercise control and remain accountable throush
effective leadership, enterprise, integrity and good judgment Tt should be diverse in its compositian,
independent but flexible, pragmatic, objective and focused on balanced and sustainable performance of the
Couneil. The Board is composed in terms of range and diversity of skills, knowledge, age and experience in
various sectors which makes il eflective and provides an appropriate balance for the oversight of the Couneil’s
mandate, On Constitutional gender threshold, the Board has four (4) women out of eight (8) members.

Appoinimeni of the Board members
The Board of Threctors is constituted under Section 4 of the Amended Persons with Disabilities Act, 2003 on
the appointment o members of the Couneil,
The Board consist ol —
a) The Chairperson, who is drawn from organizations of Persons with Disabilities and is appointed by Lhe
mresident;
B) A representative of the Principal Secretary of the Ministry ol Tabour and Social Protection
&) Areprosentalive of the Principal Secretary of The National ‘I'reasury and Planning
d) The lollowing persans appointed by the Cabinet Secretary-

L. Four persons representing various categories of disabilities, nominated by arganizations af
Persons with Disabilitics.
ii. Twa persons nominated by organizations for Persons with Disabilities, one of whom shall be

from organizations of parents ol porsons with montal disabilitics,

Term limils

Board members held office for a period not exceeding three years and are eligible for appointment for one
more lerm nol execeding three vears, The term limits apply to members representing Ministries in the
Couneil's Board,

The renewal of Board member tenure for a second term iz subject 1o an acceplable evaluation as determined
during board evaluations.

Resignation of Board members
Board members may resign 8t any time by giving notice in writing to the Cabinet Secretary, copied to the
Chairperson of the board and the Exceulive Dircetor of the Couneil,

The resignation takes effect upon receipt of notice by the appointing authority or at any later time specified
therein in the notice,

Chuirman of the Board of Directors

The Chairman of the Board is a presidential appeintee in accordance with Persons with Disabililics Acl and
Wlhwomgozn (The Code of Governanee for State Corparations). The principal role of the Chairman is o provide
leadership (o the Board. He chairs bomd meetings, ensures order and proper conduct of mectings, guides the
Board s decision-making process and faeilitates effeclive management ol the Beard, monitor the performance
of the Executive Diector and lead the annual Beoard Cvaluation process, [le also ensures that the Board is
provided with timely and sufficient information to enable it to discharge its dutics. He provides gquarterly
updales on governance matlers and any 1ssucs thereol to the responsible Cabinet Secretary and State
Corporalions Advisory Commillee (SCAC).

Succession Planning
Appointment of the Beoard Chair and Board membets is stagpered to ensure a phased transition.
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Board of Trustecs

The Board of Trustees consisted of seven (7) Trustees including the Exceulive Director, Six (6) of the Trustees
including the Chairman are non-execulive members. The Board of Trustees is constituted as stipulated in
Section 34 of the Persons with Disabilities Acl, 2003, The Board of Trustees® term expired on 5% May 2022,

The Board of Trustees administer the Nalional Development Fund for Persons with Disabilities which was
eslablished as a permanent Fund vnder Section 32 of the Persons with Disabilities Act, 2003,

Affalrs of the Board of Trusiees

The Tinard of Trustees conducts its affairs in accordance with Persons with Disabilities (National Development
Fund for Persons with Disabililies) (Conducl of Business and Affairs of the Board of Trustees) Regulations,
2004,

Board Responsihilitiey

The Board of Directors provide leadership and stralegie direction to the organization. The Persons with
Disabilities Act Na, 14 of 2003 and the Board Charter deling Lthe governance parameters within which the
Board exisls and operates, specific responsibilities of the Board, its commilices and Divectors collectively, as
well as certain roles and responsibilities incumbent upon Directors as individuals.

The Board [s charged with the Tollowing responsibilitics:

4) Determine the Council mission, vision, purpose and core vilues

b Review periodically the Council strategic objectives and palicies

¢) Review, evaluate und approve on regular basis, long term plans for the Couneil

d) Review, evaluate and approve the Council budget and capital investments

e) Lnsure that the procurement process is cost elfective and delivers value for money

1) Ensure effective, accurate, timely and transparent disclosure of pertinent information on the Council’s
operations and performance

g} Ensurc that the effective processes and systems ol risk management and internal controls are in place

h} BMoniter compliance with the constitution, all applicable laws, repulations and standards,

i1 Appoint and appraise the Exceutive Direetor and top senior management ol the Couneil

Directors” Remuneration

Directors are paid a taxable sitling allowance for every meeting attended, lunch allowance (in Lew of lunch
being provided}, accommodation allowance and mileage reimbursement where applicable, as provided in
accordance with the guidelines by State Corporations Act, The Chairman is paid 4 monthly honorarium. Below
is @ table on Board of Directors and Board of Trustees remuneration individually and collectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Declaration of Interest and Conflict of Interest
The Directors are obligated to make a writlen disclosure of any transaction which would constitute a conllict
of interest and to abstain from voting when such matters are being considered during the Board meetings. At
every meeting of the Board, an agenda item exists which requires members to make deelaralion of any interest
they may have in the business under discussion. The Council confirms that thers were no business lransactions

wilh the Direetors or their related parties.

Procurcment

The Council is a public entity whese procurement and assct disposal procedures are guided by the Public
Procurement and Asset Disposal Act 2013, Below is a list of top ten conlrets awarded during the vear.

Conlract Descriplion

Business Name of

Date Awarded

Contrack
Price/Vatoe

| Supply and delivery of @,000 bottles
ol Mivea Sunscreen Lobons SPF &0
for adults

2 Supply and delivery of 2,000 hottles
of Sunscreen Lolions SFF 30 [
ehildren
3 Prosvision of medical msurance cover
lor stall and hoard of dircetors

4 Provision of Internet services

5 Provision ol Aller Sun Lotions for
Persons with Albinism
6 | Supply and delivery of Deskoop
| Campulers

7 Supply and delivery of Assistive
devices (Trieveles, KAFOS, Special
seats. Tough riders, Moody cruisers)

ContractorSupplier

Trippo Connection
Ventures

| Shanco Limited
Jubilee Insurance

Salaricom Tamited
Salome and Davine
Tnvestrments Hnited

| Melka Regional

| Ventures Limiled

|

|

MAssociation of the
Physically Disabled of
Kenya

g Supply and delivery of Android | Lurocom Systems

Tahlels

g Supply and delivery of Tiow Vision
Devices-Monocular Telescope

10 Provision of refurbishment of
Director's office block

xav | Page

Limited

[rengo Investments

Futurepack |raders

81202021

| 8122021

LA2021

12/05/2021

B12/2021

P 0F202 ]

05107202 ]

19/10/202 ]

21242021

13/9/202]

25,498,000
25,440,050

23349286

8,325472

TATS000
4,960,000
4.525 650
A A0 00

ERTHIRE

3,495,000
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Code of Conduet and Eihics

The Code of Conduct and Ethics focuses on ethical conduct and intepmity of the Board, Tt defines Board's
commilment to the highest standards of behaviour so as to contribute o the achicvement of the National
Development Goals.

The Code sets out expectations for individual bBehaviour necessary to meet these standards and includes
requirements and guidance Lo help the Board members carry oul their role with integrity and in compliance
with the law,

The Caode applies {o every Board member, emplovee and slso to contract staff,
A breach of the Code will result in disciplinary measures being laken,

Governance Audit

The Board undertakes gevemance audit of the Council on an annual basis. The purpose of the governance
andit is to ensure that the Board conforms to the highest standards of good governance. The governance audil
covers the following parameters among others:

a) leadership and strategic management

by Iransparency and disclosyre

¢} Compliance with laws and reguiaiions

d} Conununication with stakeholders

£) Board independence and povernance

7 Board systems and procedures

g] Consislent sharcholder and stakeholder’s value enhancement and
) Corporate social responsibility and investment

The Exccutive Director and Responsibilities

The Cxecutive Director is the Chicl Exceutive Officer and 1s responsible for proper and efficient management
of the day-te-day operations of the Council under the policy puidelines of the Board of Directors. The
responsibilities of the Executive Director are:

4)  Interpret and implement the decisions of the Board;

by Cwersee the formulation and implementation of corporate strategic plans, and appropriate policies and
procedures within the Couneil;

¢)  Provide organizational leadership and supervision of all departments in order to achieve the Council
poals;

d)  Dentonstrate commitment to the organizalion’™s vision, mission, core values and mandale;

e) Provide regular, thorough and prompt communication to the Board on key technical, financial and
administrative matters;

) Effcetively reprosent the organization to stakeholders and enhance its public image; and

g) Promptly respond Lo Board members” requests for information,

The Corporation Secretary
Corporation Secretary is the secretary to the Board and guides the Board on governance and statutory matters
and ix the cusiodian of corporate governance in the Council,

Board Meetings

Board meetings arc held al least Tour mes a vear, The Board theretore holds rezular scheduled mectings
throughoul the year and supplementary meelings may be held as and when necessary,  In case of non-
attendance due to other commitments, such information is communicated Lo the Secretary, Executive Director
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and Chairman prior to the date of the scheduled meeting. The Lxecutive Director is a memboer of all Sub-
Committees of the Board except Audit Committec,
Best Practice:
ay Create a vear-long Board Meeting Calendar, and any deviations should be agreed upon by 4l Board
Memhbers.
by Special Mectings and change ol Board mecting venues should be approved by the Principal Secretary

The previous Board's term expired on 8" October 2021 and the current board was appointed on 9 February
2022, The Board meetings were altended as [ollows;

Board Membership and Attendance of Meetings

Date Retired Meetine

attenibince

Diate Appointed

Name

Board Committees, Responsihilities and Meetings

Mr. Poter Muchin Chaiman 3™ May 2019 24 May 2022 343

| Dr. Habiba Mohamei Member 9 Oetober 2018 89 October 2021 242
M1, Hassan Marsa Membaer 9 Oetaher 201 8 8% October 2021 22
W Samuel Odawo | Member 9" October 201§ 8 Qctober 2021 272
Mr. MacRalph Chege Member O Oclober 2008 85 Octaber 2021 T
Mr. Simon Ndubai | Member | 9" October 2018 8 October 2021 212

 Ms. Ashura BB Michael . Member 9% October 2018 8" October 2021 22

M. Tbrahim Maalim | Member | st August 2019 8" February 2022 | 202
Mr. David Malonza Member 23" April 2020 8" February 2022 20
Thr, Habiba Mohamed Member | gil Fét_:ru.&E 2022 - T
Ms Ziena Rashid Member 9 February, 2022 - =il
Mr. Victor Ochieng Member 9" Fehruary, 2022 E 141
Ms. Me:rcv hugure Meniber O Febroary, 2022 D 1/1
ir. Kenneth {f.lﬁ:na hMember G Féhmﬂai‘jj?—- - e
-I‘:fl_s.'S}-TviE"['-._fl:}Eham  Moember 9 Febrpary, 2022 = - £

| Dr. Michael Munene Member of February, 2022 . - T

M Jaseph K. Lerina Member O Febiuary, 2022 = 141
w1, Hassan Harun | Secretary 1" December, 2020 = 373

lhe Board delegates cerlain fimetions to well-structured committecs bul without abdicating its own
responsibilities. The Board has developed o committee structure that assists in the execution of its duties,
powers and authorities, Each Committee is guided by the terms of reference which outlines its responsibilities
as mandated by the Board.

‘The Comrmillees are appropriately constituted drawing mumbership from amongst the board members with
appropriate skills and experience. The Chairman of the Board, management and external partics/advisors ave
required o aftend the committee meetings only by invitation. Best practice: Members of a committee should
b issued with appointment letter containing their roles and responsibilities.
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The Commillees are expected to operate transparently, ensure full disclosure to the Board and conduct
themselves within the rules and procedures set oul by the Board, Matters deliberated during committee
meetings should be presented to the Board by the respective Chairpersoms during the full Board meeting, The
Committees are Audit and Risk, Finance and Procurement, Programmes and Human Resource and
Admiistration Committee, The responsibilitics and attendance of meetings during the year is as summarized
below:

Fingnce and Procurement Committes

The Finance and Procurement Committee assist the board in [ullilling its oversight responsibilities for fund
utilization, allocation, review of budgets and financial reporting and monitoring and verilying procurement
actions and ensuring thal approved procurement procedures have been applied properly.

The responsibililies of the commiltee are as tollows:

a) Prepare detailed quarterly income and expenditure report an the financial position of' the Council and
report to the board at every quarter

b) Review budget for recommendation (o the board

¢} Consider Gnancial performance reparts and review management responses and actions as appropriale

d)  Ensure approprigle, prudent sustainable and efficient use of Council funds

e} Monitor the financial reporting process to ensure compliance with all repulatory returns

1} Rring to the Boards attention all linancial matters and potential risk of which it has knowledge that
may allect the current or future position of the Council

&) ensure consistent and correct application of procurement practices

Finance and Procurement Committee Membership and Attendance of mectings

Name ] Daie Appointed Date Retired Meeting
attendance
M. Hassan Marsa Chairman 9™ October 2018 8" October 2021 2
Mr. Samuel Odawo | Member | 9™ October 2018 8" October 2021 22
Mr. Ibrahim Maalim Member Ist August 2019 8 February 2022 212
Mr. David Malonza | Member 237 April 2020 8™ February 2022 22

Andit and Risk Committes

The Committes assists the bhoard to monitor, evaluate, make decisions and propose to the board with respect 1o
all auditing, risk management and internal control functions relating fo the Council and where appropriate
st msbructions o the management for action or make recommendations thereof to the board.  The
committee has the following responsibilities;

a} Review the effcclivencss of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and
ensure Council’s conlinwly amongsl ofher responsibilities as may be delegaled by the Board,

B) Review and ensure the integrity of linancial stalements and appropriate accounting principles prior o
review and approval by the Board.

e} Review the effectiveness of the Board’s internal contral systems and compliance as well as advise the
board on risks and miligalion measures.

d) Review audil reports and make recommendalions o the Board,
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Besl Practice in the operation of the Commities 1s:

a) Create an Audit Committes Charter that provides members with direction and consistency,

b} If possible, rotation of members of the Audit Committee should be minimized, and members should
have expericnes in the Auditing Sphere.

cb To minimize last-minute implementation or replies, audit minutes and reports should be prepared
within 7 days of the meeting.

d} In order to minimize conflicts of interest, no member of the Audit Committee should also serve on the
Finance Commitice or any ather commiitee {excepl Ministry appointees to the Boacd),

Audil and Risk Commitiee Membership and Attendance of Meetings

Thate Appointed Dare Retired Mevting
attendance
M. Sinon Joni MNdubai Chairman U™ Cieinber 2018 B Octoher 202 202
Mr. David Malonza | Member 23 April 2020 8™ Fehruary 2022 242

Programmes and Human Resource and Administration Committec

The Commiltee ensures thal delegated Lasks under programs department are performed and assist the Board in
achieving its human, administration, ethical and governanee functions through adequate governance policy
developiient, recruitinent and staff development programs.

The Commiltee has the Following responsibilitics:

a) Monitor and guide the overall Vision, Mission, Strategy and program plan for the Council

b} Consider the Counell live-vear strategic plan, objoetives, budgets, performance indicators, business
plans, anmual worle plans and performance contract established to achieve them,

¢} Toreview and develop eriteria and guidelines on the administeation of National development fund for
Persens with Disabilities and set priovity arcas [or Himding and implementation of the fund.

d) Tomake proposals to the Board for enhancement ol the Council's programmes

e} Advise the board on all matters regarding the contents of national, regicmal and international treatics
and conventions on the rights of Persons with Disabilities

[ Orwversee and monitor Council’s governance framework policies

g) Review skills and expericnee of the stalT of the Council and recommend (o the Board the desired skills
and expericnce for potential new appointments,

) Assist and support annual review processes [or evaluating the effectiveness of the Board and
committees

i) Appraise the performance of senior management Lleam

D Subisly ilself with regards to succession planning, that the processes and plans are in place with
regards Lo the Exceulive Direclor and senior appointiments.

k) Address all disciplinary issues grising from the Council's stalT
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Programmes, Human Resource and Administration Committee Membership and Attendance of
Meetings

Name Rule Pate Appointed Dute Retived Meetinge
allendance
L. Hahiba Mohamed Chairman 9" Oetober 2018 &1 October 2021 1/2
| Mr. MacRalph Chege  Member 9% October 2018 8" October 2021 2/2
Mr. Ibrahim Maalim bember Bt August 2019 g Féhruary.ﬂzﬁz‘i ' a5 |

Board of Trusiees
The Board of 'rustee administers the National Tevelopment Fund for Persons with Disahbilities.

The responsibilities of the committes are as follows;
a)  Toapprove payment of grants towards economic cmpowerment supporl of Persons with Misabilities
b}  To approve payment to learning institutions of Persons with Disabilitics with Tunds For inlrastruciure
and equipment
¢)  To provide supporl for assisive devices and services
d) Toapprove payment of scholarship Lo Persans with Disahilitics

Date Appointed Date Retired Meeting
attendance
Samson Mpapayai Tipape | Chairman 5 May 2019 4% May 2022 207
Abdia Abdi Abkula | Member 5% May 2019 | 4% May 2022 77
_Juhnsmr_tg ™ Mutua _ Member 5" May 20019 4" May 2@22 i
Abdulhakim Ware Shelie | Member 5 May 2019 | 4" May 2022 U7
Peter Muchiri Member 5% May 2019 4" May 2022 617
Susan Mutungi | Member 51 hay 2019 -4 May 2022 747
s, Nlull{mul Treasury and R - . =
Planning _ B . - _
Harun %1 Hassan | Bperetary 1* December 20210 - 141

WA Principal Secretary, The National Treasury did nat nominate o representative to the Bowrd

Programmes Committee Membership and Attendance

Name Date Appointed Date Retired Meeting
altendance

Abdulhakim Were Shehe Chairman 5 May 2019 41 May 2022 77

Peler Muchiri ~ Member | 5" May 2019 4 May 2022 57

Susan Mulungi Member 5t M&-y 2019 __"r"'M*i!rf =N L

Johnstone Mutua Member | 24% May 2021 4" May 2022 2/2 .

Abdia Abdi Abkula Member | 247 May 2021 M May2022 22
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Board Effectiveness and Fyaluation

Beost praclice requites that Board of Threctors conduct self-evaluation of its performance on an armual hasis
guided by Mwongozo, the Code of Governance [or Stale Corporations and Governnient policies, Under
Mwongozo the Doard of Directors should determine its perfonmance criteria and the evaluation sutcomes
which will form the basis for renewal for a secend and final term, The evaluation should cover the Board as a
whole, 1ty committees, mdividual members, the chairperson, the Execulive Dircctor and the Carporation
Secrelary.

Beards of state corporations should schedule an annual Board selli~evaluation activity as parl of the Board
Almanac which should be communicated to State Corporation Advisory Committee (SCAC) by 3717 July of
cach year, Board evaluations cover the period 1 July to 30" Junc of subscquent year and should be conducted
wilhin Lhe st Tour months of cvery financial year.

It is the responsibility of the oversight body which is the State Corporation Advisory Comimittee (o facilitate
the annual evaluation, Before conducting a Doard evaluation, the previous cvaluation report has to be
submitted to the Board for their perusal and serutiny, The previous Board was assessed tor the Financial Year
2020-2021 on 15" September 2021 while the evaluation for Financial Year 2021-2022 was done in July 2022,
The review procedure includes the [ollowing steps: each member analyses the chairman of the board
individually; the chairman evaluates each member: all members evaluate the CEO; and finally, each member is
subjected to a peer evaluation, The evaluation's findings are laken into consideration for designing corective
selions and training courses for the Doard.

The criteria used for evaluation is as follows:

Liffective preparation for and participation at meetings

Understanding the organisation, mandates, strategic thiift of the Council

Ability to take an independent view on matiers broughl lor discussion

= Communicaiion with fellow directors, management and slakeholders

Regular atendance of meetings

= Keeping abreast with lalest developments, including awareness and compliance with regulatory
guidelines

Board Induction and Continuouns Skills Developinent

The Board provided its Board members with an effective induction program at the point of entry in order 1o
familiarize them with their responsibilitics us directors, general principles of corporate zovernance and Board
practices,

The Board ensured thal s competence needs assessment was caried out periodically and an annual
development plan prepared (o address identified gaps, Board members were provided with access W notice of
Continuing Development Programs thal are designed to keep members abreast of the latest development in
sector best practices, corporate governance and eritical issues relating to the operation of public sector Boards,
All & new board members were inducted on corporate governance so that they can understand their mandate
and responsibilities as provided for in the Mwongozo code of Conduet. the induction exercise was conducted
by the Kenya School of Government on 11% — 13" April, 2022, In addition, the board was taken through the
Programmes and services al the Council by management on 27% and 28% April 2022,

Internal Controls and Risk Manzgement

The Board has the responsibility of 1d:.nhf3,mg internal risk exposure and developing measures to mitigate
against the identified risks. The Board reviews and monitors the development and implementation of systens
on internal eontrols and risk management practices. The Beard has delegated the day-1o-day management of
risks o management throngh systems and processes carried out on day-to-day basis,
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Relationship with Stakcholders

The Board wvalues the importance of complete, limmely, tansparent and effective communication with its
stakehalders (or building and maintaining their trust and confidence by providing regular information on its
activities and addressing their concerns whilst having regard to legal and sirategic considerations,

The main avenues for communication are through press releases, stakeholder forums, publications and annual
reparty and financial statements. The Board has continued to encourage electronic communication through
publishing documents in the Council website www.ncpwd.po ke and has endeavoured to ensure that the
website is highly inleractive and contains relevant information,

Additionally, the Board has dedicsted stail to deal with complaints and public relations effectively, efficiently
and as expeditiously as possible. The Board has an established mechanisin of receiving, resalving and giving
[cedback on complaints referved to it by itz stakebolders. The Board subnmits guarterly repots to the
Commission of Administrative Justice on complaints handling and manapement.

Compliance with Laws, Regulations and Standards
During the year, the Board complicd with all the relevant Laws, Regulations and Standards,
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X, MANAGEMENT DISCTSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Conncil®s Operational and Financial Performance

In this section we examine the performance ol the Counctl during the Financial vear 2021722 in terms ol
aclivilics, programmes and services that we offered to Persons with Disabilities across the Country, This is in
fwllilment of the mandate of the Council as provided for in the Persoms with Disabilities Act 2003

The Implementation of the activities and the programimes oflored during the year were undertaken at the
backdrop of the new order of post COVID-19 pandemic, Provision of scrvices therelore had to take into
consideralion the Government protocols on COVID-1%, Nevertheless, the key highlights of achievemen
during the period are highlighted below,

1. Cash Transfer for Persons with Severe Disabilities

The Mational Council Tor Persons with Disabilitics’ Cash Transfer programme for househaolds with persons
with severe disahilities is a Vision 2030 Flagship projeet under the consolidated cash transfer progranimes
implemented by the State department for Social Prolection and the Council, The programme s delivered
through provision of cash transfers with the aim of improving lives of persoms with severe disabilities by
cmpiwering and strengthening the capacity of caregivers. The programme was started in 2000/201 1. first as a
pilot targeting 2,100 beneficiarics from the then 210 constituencies, Since then, the programme has expanded
and currently targets 47,000 houscholds with persons wilh severe disabilities,

During the year under review, the Council disbursed cash transfor funds 1o 37,023 households with persons
with severe disabilities, through the Tnua Jamii programmes contracted six pavment scrvice providers - KCR
Bank, Equity Bank, Post Bank, Cooperative Bank, KWFT Bank and National Bank.

Ower time, concerns have been raised regarding the low number of beneficiaries under the PWSD CT
programme and that the programme has not reached its target number of heneliciaries, To address this key
issue, the Council carried oul a countrywide exercise during the wvear under review lo reinstate 12.464
houscholds that were previously benefitting but are currently out of the Comsolidated Cash Transfer
Programme Managemenl Information System (CCTPMIS).

To successfully undertake the exercise, the Couneil eonducted a one-week physical teaining of all the County
[nsahility Services Officers on 26th to 30th July 2021 and also held suhscquent virtnal meetings to adegualely
eouip the oflicers to undertake the retargeting exercise. Additionally, the Couneil recruited and trained 290
data clerks 1o serve as enumerators. The cnumerators undertook the listing and registration of the affected
househelds that met the eligibility eriteria for enrolment into the programme. 2,729 bencficiaries have so far
been remstated. The process of reinstating the additional 9,977 beneficiaries who are cunently out of the
payroll s ongoing.

2. Albinism Support Programme

The Albinism Support Programme is designed to improve the wellare of Persons with Albinism (PWA). The
programme provides sunscreen lotion, protective clothing, eye care services, skin cancer sereening, treatment
and sensitization of communities in all the 47 counties to end stigma. discrimination and violation of human
rights of persons with albinism. This programme is offered in the premise that skin cancer is a major cause ol
mortalily among persons with albinism in Kenya, Persons with albinism need regular skin cancer screening
which is expensive and unavailable in mest of the public hospitals, During the year, the programme targeted
5,000 persons with albinism threughout the country,

Further during the perviod under review, the Couneil procured and disteibuted 5,000 wide brim hats to persons
wilh albinism across the country to protect them from harmful sun rays. The Council also procured and
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distributed 5,000 lip balms, 23,080 bottles of sunscreen lotions and 3,786 bottles of after-sun lotions.

The Council also supported 32 persons with albinism for skin cancer treatment in various hospitals. In order to
improve programme efficiency. the Council conducted monitoring exercise lor awareness activities in 15
counties.

In addition, the Council continued to monitor distribution of sunsereen lotions by hospitals across the Country
te 3,818 persons with albinism. Further, the Council distributed 500 monocular devices to learners with
albinism. The Council also supporled Albinism Society of Kenya to assist in carrying out awareness on
albinism issues at the national level.

Further, the Council organized and held the International Albinism Awarcness Day on 13 June 2022 in Kilifi
County. The event brought together more than 500 persons with albinism from Mombasa, Kwale, Tana River
and Kilifi eounties, During the year under review, 1,085 persons with albinism were screened for skin cancer
across the country,

In order to improve access to educational opportunitics by persons with albinism, the Council supported 70
learners with albinism. In addition, 47 persons with alhinism were supported with start-up tool kits in arder 1o
provide them with employment and wealth creation opportunities in sclected sectors, During the yvear the
Council registered an additional 648 persoms with albinism

3. The National Development Fund for Persons with Disahilities

‘The Mationa] Development Fund for Persons with Disabilities is a permanent Fund established through the
Persons with Disabilities Act, 2003 for the benelit of Persons with Disabilities in Kenya. The Fund came into
effect through a Gasctte Notice in 2009, Under the Fund, the Couneil is implementing several programmes
aimed at improving the welfare of Tersons with Disabilities. These include:

3.1 Economic Lmpowerment Programme

The Economic Linpowerment programme employs a two-prong approach; funding for sellthelp groups o
juintly undertake a commaon project for the benefit of the membership. This includes, fish ponds, rearing
livestock, bead making, among olher activities, or revolving fund for lending to group members to engage in
husimesses at an individual level. The granls aim o help Persons with Disabilities gain self-sufficiency in
generating income and to enable them gain skills and cxperience i accessing loans for their businesses,

Eligible groups supported are those of and for Persons with Disabilities legally registered to operate within the
Republic of Kenya and registered with the Council. They must have been in existence for at least one year
sinee their registration,

Dring the vear, the Couneil approved support to 301 self-help groups of Persons with Disabilities for income
generating activities out of which 31 groups were awarded grants. The remaining 250 were acerved as pending
bill due to be funded in the next financial vear.

3.2 LPO Financing Programme

The LPO Financing Programime supports businesses owned by Persons with Disabilities to finance LPOs, LSOs
and contracts awarded by Government procuring entities. The businesses funded are those registered by the
MNational Treasury wnder the Access o Government Procurement Opportunitics (AGPO) Programme, This
programme was introduced to improve employment opportunities for Persons with Disghalities, During the
wear, the Council relaunched the programme after a two=vear suspension due o delavil on repayment of the
[unds by beneficiaries funded in the previous vears.
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The Council also engaged and signed a memoerandum of understanding with KCB Bank Kenva Limited to
aperationalize the redesigned programme. The MOU was signed in December 2021, Further, the Council
engaged KCB Bank Limited, Kenya, lo train the county velling committees and develap the application too!
kit and checklist lor applicants. In addition, the Council managed to recover Kshs 856,400 outstanding loans
from the programme defaulters,

3.3 Tools of Trade

The T'ools of Trade empowerment programme (e Persons with Disabilitics seeks to provide beneficiaries with
employment and wealth creation opportunities in selecied scctors such as calering, aulamolive engineering,
apriculture, beauty, and domestic services. This is achieved through the provision of slart-up tool kits to start
their own husinesses, During the year, the Council approved and procured lool kils Tor 362 PW Ds,

3.4 Education Scholarship Grants

This programme aims to npeove enrolment, retention and completion rates in education by Persons with
Dizabilities for eventual engagement in decent and gainful employment. This is schieved through provision of
bursaries and scholarships to learners with disabilities in primary and secondary schools, middle level colleges,
universities and vocational mstitutions,

Granls awarded al cach level are o g maximum of Kshs 200000 for Primary and Vocational levels, Kshs
30,000 for Secondary level, Kshs 40,000 for College and Kshs 500,000 for universities, During the year, the
Counell awarded bursaries to 2,169 learners with disabilitics against o target of 2,200, The variance is
allribuied 1 bodget cat during the year.

3.5 Advocaey and Awareness Creation

Advocacy and awareness campaigns play an important role in building eritical mass to support the cause for
profecting the rights of Persons with Disabilities as well as creating awarcness on disability issues, During the
yoar, the Counetl supported 43 Orgamizations of Persons with Disabilities (OPDs) to observe various disability
cvents aimed at creating awareness on disability and advocating for the rights of Persons with Disabilities.

A6 Infrastructure and Equipment Sopport to Learning Institntions

This programme facilitates the mainienance and growth of institutions and organizations which provide
education or social care services to Persons with Disabililics in order to improve enrolment capacity and quality
of learning, Support is provided to educational institutions including special schools, special units and social
care nstitutions. Duoring the year, the Council supperted 13 leaming institutions for development of various
mlrasiruclurs within the inshtutions,

3.7 Assistive Deviees & Services

The programme on assistive devices and services is aimed at improving mobility and independent living by
Persons with Disabilities, During the year, the Council supported 3,223 Persons with Disabilitics scross the
country with various assistive devices which included hearing aids, crutches, wheelchairs, tricyeles, white
canes and walking applisnces. 366 workers in the essential services (rom public institutions were sponsored hy
the Council for training in Basic Kenya Sign Language at the Kenya Instilule of Special Education during the
vear. They later on graduated during the vear,

In addition, 45 Persons with Disabilities who had acquired impairment in adulthood were supported with
Muhilily & Orientation Training to enable them to live independently. This was Facilitated through partnership
with Kemya Institute for the Blind, Kenya Sociely for the Blind and Machakos Technical Institute for the
Blind.
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3.8 Registration ol Persons with Disabilitics

The Council continucd to maintain u database of Persons with Disabilitics through the registration process
across the country in partnership with the Ministry of Health. Persons with Disabilities are required to register
with the Council so as to enable them access the services offered by the Council, Regislration is also important
in establishing the data and statisties of Persons with Disabilities in Kenya.

During the vear under review, the Council registered 24,992 Persons with Disahilities throughout the Country.
In addition, 505 organizations for Persons with Disabililies were also registered during the period, Further, the
Council Taeilitated 4,912 Persons with Disabilities access lax exemption from Kenva Revenue Authority.

Further, during the year. the Council launched a new registration system aimed at stecamnlining the process of
registering Persons with Disabilities to enhance efficiency as well as weed ool lraud ecases in the registration
process. Uhe new system launched by His Excellency the Fresident of the Republic of Kenva on 3™ December
2021, captures detailed bio data of Persons with Disabilities including socio economic data, The system has the
capacity to produce administrative data that can be used for programme planning and allocation of resources.

In addition, the Council participated in the development of the Disability Medical Asscssment and
Categorization Guidelines spearheaded by the Ministy of Health. The guidelines are expected to standardizc
the assessment process in all the hospitals. This assessment tool is provided in the guidelines being used under
the new registration system.

4. Puhlic Tnformation and Awareness Crealion

Information is a eritical aspect in enabling the public to make informed choices and decisions in their day-to-
day activitics. TLalso enhances understanding among pecple on their rights and privileges and enabling them to
understand the environmenl In enhancing understanding of disability issues and promoting the rights of
Persons with Disabilities, the Council continued 1o scnsitize the public and ereate awareness on disability
through a number ol activitics and during various national and intemational disabilitics Days and cvenls,

Key among these was the [nternational Day of Persons with Disabilitics which was held on 3™ December 2021
in Nairohi County, Others included the World Autism Awareness Day {WAALD) celebrations held on 1% April
2022 in Nyeri County, the Internaticnal Wheelchair Day held on 1* March 2022 in Nairobi among others, The
Counedl also paricipated in the 7% Devalution Conference held an 23 to 26"“ November 2021 in Makueni
County. The Exceulive Dircelor participated in the main plenary session of the Conlerence whose theme was
"Vudnerability cnd resilience in the face of elimate chomge,

The Council in partnership with Daima Trust organized and facilitated the MNational Diversity and Inclusion
Awards and Recognition (DIAR Awards) ceremony held on 18" March 2022 at Sarit Expo Centre in Nairohi,
The theme of the Award was: Celebrating Champioas of Diversity Egquity Inclusion - Turning our
Differences fnto Strengths. This thome celebraled individuals and instilutions championing Lthe course ol
diversity and inclusion in different sectors. (ver SO0 parlicipanls drawn [rom 120 organizations attended the
Ceremaony in which 28 categories of Awards were presenied,

The Counell also participated in Commemorating the World Day of Remembrance for Road Traffic Yictims at
the National Spinal Injury Hospital in Nalrobi on 21% November 2021, [n addition, the Council participated in
observing the International White Cane Awareness Tay an [5% Octaber 2021 held in Nairabi. Tn collaboralion
with other partners, the Council also marked the World Cerebral Palsy Day on 6th Oclober 2021 in Nyerd
County, the International Week of the Deal held in Homabay County on 20" — 26™  September 2021 where
the chairperson of the Board was the chiel guest. 'The theme lor the event was *“Thriving Deal Communities"

xxxvi|Page NCPWD- Anpual Report & Finanvial Statements 2027/2022



NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statementis
For the year ended June 30, 2022

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

To enhance access to information on its programmes and services offered. the Couneil reprinted and
disseminated to the public various publications mcluding brochures on Council programmes, Serviee Delivery
Charter, the Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities, Persons with Disabilitics Act, 2003 and a
quarierly online newsletter, This is in addition to disseminating information through its various social media
platfimms and website. Other publicity materials produced included: banners, desk calendars and exhibition
display bourds.

The Council also produced a documentary Lo be aired in various forums and events with the aim of publicizing
its programmes and services, Further, the Council engaged various media houses o disseminate information
on disability issues and the programmes offered. These included N'TV, KTN TV, KBC TV, TV 47 among
others,

In ensuring that the public is kept inlormed on the programmes offered while observing COVID-19 protocols,
the Council held a number of virtual public Open Days through which the Council reached a large audience in
dizseminating information on its programmes and services. Some of the issues discussed during the evenls
meluded information on faxation and tax exemption, varicus programmes and services offered, the new
registration sysiem among othors,

5. Disability Mainstreaming

Disability mainstreaming entails accessibility and mclusion of Persens with Disabilities in soeial coomomic
development agenda. During the year, the Council evaluated, scored and issued compliance certificates Lo 320
Ministries, Departments and Agencies (MDAs) in compliance with the implementation of the Disabilily
Mainstreaming indicator in the Performance Contracting for the year 2021/2022. This is out of the 394 MDAs
that were contracted by the Public Service Performance Management and Monitoring Unil {PSPMMU), The
scoring Tor the MDAs (s as [ollows:

e Seare Mo ol instilotinng

D-19 - 64
20— 39 S 85 -
40— 59 ] 75
60 79 69 =
80-100 B i 27
Tutal | 320

Reporting of the Disability Mainstrcaming indicator by MDAs was also aulomated to ease reporting and
feedback.

In addition, 277 MTDIAs were trained on disability mainstreaming. The trainings were conducted online, in-
house. und on location, The purpose of the training was 1o build the capacity of the MDA’s Disability
Mainstreaming commiliecs, senior managers and staff on the implementation of the disability mainsireaming
indicator,

Further, doring the year, the Council in collaboration with stakeholders reviewed the Disability Mainstreaming
Training Manual inte three distinet manvals for staflf, senior managers and the Disabililty Mainstreaming
Committees. The manuals will be subjected for validation during the next Financial Year,

In order to assess buill environments to ascertain the extent to which MDAs are accominodating Persons with
Disabilities, the Council carried out accessibility and usability audits in 155 government institutions, Through
the assessments, it was cstablished that 4 number of MDAs were making progress in enhancing accessibility.
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Further. through the NCPWD Carcer Portal, the Council registered 373 potential employers and 5,437 Persans
with Disabilitics seeking employment. To promote the use of the portal by emplovers, the Council also
conducted several on boarding sessions for MDAs and sensitizalion forums for Persons with Disabilitics.

6. Access to Government Procurement Opportunitics (AGP(YH

The AGPO programme is an affirmative sction aimed at empowering disadvantaged proups by giving them
more opportunitics fo do business with government, The programme aims to facilitate the enterprises owned
by youth, women and Persons with Disabilitics 1o be able to participate in government procurement. |his
programme is part of the implementation of the povernment policy of reserving 30% of government
procurcment opportunitics for the Youth, Women and Persons with Disabilities.

In the Financial Year 2021422, the Council awarded tenders/contracts o the Youth, Wamen and Persons with
Disabilities worth Kshs, 117,525,026 out of the annual target of Kshs. 100,216,903,

The table below indicates the distribution of tenders/coniracis under this programme.

Category Awarid-in Kshs,

PR 42 488001
| ¥outh 21,682,585
Wormen i 53.354 440
Total o =5 117,525,026 |

7. DMonitoring Programmes and Activities

In the Financial Year 2021/22, the Council continued to carry oul internal monitoring of its programmes and
services to improve service provision and also track how desired target outputs are being achieved, Menitoring
was carmied out on Albinism programme in Taita Taveta, Kwale, Mombasa, Meru, [siofo, Laikipia and Kilifi
Counties and also Kenya Sign Language lraining programme in Nairobi.

Further, during the year, the Internal Audit department conducted an audit on the Albinism programme in 13
counties- Nairobi, Kiambu, Nyeri, Embu, Makuenl, Mombasa, Kilifi, Nakuru, Kisumu, Kisii, Siava, Bungoma
and Migori, Various components of the programme were reviewed and recommendations made on the areas
that needed improvement,

In addition, the Couneil audited selt-help groups, tools of trade, infrastruclure and equipment projects and
education assistance programmes in Mombasa, Kilifi, Taila Taveta, Nakuru, Baringo, Elgeyoe Marakwet, West
Pokol, Trans Nzoia and Uasin Gishu counties and the Disability Mainstreaming Department. The Couneil also
conducted an audit on imprest system and all payments made during the vear, The audil reports were shared
with the management. To ensure that the organization’s assets are safeguarded against misusc and confirm
their existence, the council also conducted an audit of iis fleet and fixed assets.

Lhe Council developed its MTP IV proposed programmes and prajects for the period 2023-2027. In the plan,
the National Development Fund for Persons with Disabilities was redesigned to incorporate other initiatives
ncluding children with disabilities’ care reform and employment of Persons with Disabilities. Resenrch on
disabilitics related initiatives was also proposed (o enhance servige delivery in the Country.

To track the organizations’ commitment in Service Delivery, the Council carried out a midterm review af ils
2018-2022 Stratepric Plan and a repart with recommendations was produced. In addition, the Couneil
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participated in a workshop to document best practices under the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) with
the State Department for Planning,

The Council also cascaded the FY 2021/2022 Performance Contract to HODs. The Contract provides a
commitment between the management and the sccretariat in ensuring that the Council delivers services to the
public as per the approved budgets while making extra commitments to maobilize resources in areas not
adequately funded,

d. Training and Capacity Building of Stafl

Continuous training and capacity building for staff is critical in cnhancing service delivery. During the vear,
the Council frained |2 staff members drawn from Human Resouree, Procurement, Legal, Internal Audit and
Accounts departments on professional development trainings. 17 staff were trained on Risk Management, The
Council also facilitated 4 drivers o atlend a refresher course at Kenya Institute of Highways and Ruilding
Technology, In addition, |2 staff were trained on various shorl courses.

The Council facilitated stall training on cross cutting areas in the Performance Contract for the Financial Year
2021/22. They included 6 on mental health, 5 on road safety, 1 on science and leehnology innovations, 1 on
public complaints resolution and 7 on environmental sustainability,

During the year. the Couneil received a lotal ol 132 interns from the Public Service Commission Internship
Programme (P51P) who were deployed in various departments and county offices. In addition, 2 interns from
the TCT Awthority were deployed in the I'l' departiment. Further, the Council also received 23 students from
various universities for practical attaclhunent in various disciplines,

The Council promaoted 35 staff to various levels with effcet from July 2021, Two officers were also facilitated
1o atlend Public Service Internship Mentarship & Coaching training. The Council in collaboration with Juhilee
Insurance arganized a wellness sensitization for staiT.

Further, the Council conducted periormance appraisal for its staft in all the 47 Counties and the headquarters
for the Y 2020021 and also set largets [or the FY 2021722,

9. Implementation of the TInited Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities and
Persons with Disabilities Aet 2003,

The Council as the lead Government agency on disability matters is responsible for coordinating and advising
the government en the implementation of the Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities, During
the year, the Council continued to engage with various government agencies with the aim of realizing the
pravisions of the Persons with Disabilities Act, 2003 and the Convention on the Rights of Persons with
Disabalities (CRPL),

On 5™ August 2021, the Council participated in a workshop organized by the Nalional Assembly on the
protocal 1o the African Charter on [Tuman and People’s Righis on Persons with Disabililics in Africa adapted
by the African Union Assembly of Heads of States and Government on 29" January 2018, The Persans with
Disability Protocol promotes a unilied, collaborative and coordinated approach in eliminating discrimination
aguinst Persons with Disabilities. Addilionally, it promotes supportive conversation to enhance and promaote
legal, poliey and programmatic interventions to address the challenges faced by Persons with Disabilities. The
rights enshrined in the pretocol reflect the Government’s commitinent and priority in investing in the people of
Kemya under the Social Pillar of Vision 2030 which aims at improving the quality of life for all Kenyans by
targeting social wellare projects and programmes for Persons with Disabilities,
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The Couneil participated in a National Consultation Forum on the implementation of the Marrakesh 'I'reaty in
Kenya organized by Kenya Instilute of Curriculum Development (KICD) in partnership with UNESCO, The
trealy 1s one of the key milestomes in ensuring that Persons with Disabilities have the right to inclusive
education, The treaty seeks wo facilitate the production and intemational transfer of specially adaptod books for
people with visual impairments casier, It does this by establishing a set of limitations and exceptions to
traditional copyright Tav,

In the spirit of improving and enhancing partnerships between the Couneil and various stakeholders, on 17"
November 2021, an online open day was organized in collaboration with the Kenya Revenue Authority and
Ministry of [lealth. The objective of the event was 1o create awareness amongst Persons with Disabilities on
the privileges they could enjoy, Ue procedure of accessing those privileges, their obligations under the law and
tor address the various complainls raised in relation to taxation,

L the implementation of the Convention on the Elimination of Discrimination Azamst Women (CEDAW), the
Council participated in the validation of the 9th perindic CEDAW Kenva Keport that was organized by the
State Departmenl for Gender, The report was a response to the 2017 concluding observalions, and
recommendations of the UN Committee on the Elimination of Discrimination against Women,

In light of the up-coming clections the Council appainted a focal person fo be an ex-official in the Disability
Inclusion Coordinating Commitice of Independent Clectoral and Boundaries Commission (IEBC). Several
meetings were held both online and face to face with an chjcctive of developing a strategic plan for the
Committee. The Council sceks to evaluate the Commissions preparedness for inclusion of Persons wiih
Disabilitics in the remaining electoral process and data for voters with disabilities.

To ensure participalion in the development of legislations al the East Afiican Region, the Council participated
n a Public [learing on the East African Community Sexual Reproductive Health Rill 2022, The event was
organized by the State Department for East African Community on 29" June 2022. The ohjective of the Rill is
o protect and facilitate the attainment of the Tife-course sexual and reproduciive health and rights of all
persons in the Community,

The Council held ils secomd Regional Legal Aid Clinic in Mombasa under the thems: “Accessibility — The
First Step towards Justice” on1 6" — 18" November, 2021. The event was a lollow up o the Tegal Aid Clinic
that was held in Nairobi an 10th March 2021, The aim of the clinic was to create awarcness on the rights for
Persoms with Disabilities as provided [or in various policy and legal frameworks. 'The outcome of the two
clinics was the development of the Regional [egal Aid Clinic Report and the National Guide w Disability
Laws,

The Council held a meeting with the Senale Commitlee on Mational Cohesion, Equal Opportunity and
Regional Integration on 8" June 2022, where the Council highlighled a number of issues including: measures
it had taken to promote equity and improve the standards and quality of life of Persons with Disabilities, status
update en the develution of the registration of Persons with Disabilities at the eounty level and the steps it has
taken to promate participation of Persons with Disabilities in the public sector and particularly in inclusion in
elective positions.

10, Promotion of Use of ICT within the Council

Dwring the period under review, the Council reviewed the 1CT Policy for ratification and approval by the Board
in the next Financial Year. The purpose of the policy is 1o assist the Couneil in ensuring Lthat it has aceess to
best practices for identilication, protection and management of 1O and therefore maximizing Lhe benelils and
refurns from public investment in 1CT. The review of this policy was to align it with the government 1CT
standards.
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The policy will ensure that the Council Information assets maintaing aceuracy, integrily, confidentiality and
authenticity in accordance with the NCPWT Information Security Management system (1SME),

In May 2022 the Cabinet Secretary for Public Service, Gender, Senior Citizens Alfairs and Special Programs,
launched the K82952 (Kenya Standard — Accessibility-1CT produsts and services). The Council was part of
the technical commitiee thal development the Standard, The Standard will go a long way @ ensure that
government agencies comply with accessibility when ofTering services to the general public.

11. Parinerships

The Couneil eontinued 1o strengthen and forge new parinerships with other stakeholders to enhance its service
provision. During the wear under review, the Couneil continued to work with various partners both in public
and private sectors. To this end, the Council held 2 number of engagements with partners to support various
programmes and activities undertaken by the Council.

The Council in collaboration with Leonard Cheshire also held a forum with Human Resource personnel and
Disability Mainstreaming Commitlees from Ministries, Departments and Slate Agpencies (MDAs) on
improving inclusiveness at the workplace and hiving of Persons with Disabilities. During the forum,
participants were sensitized on and encouraged Lo use the NOPWD Career Portal to employ more Persons with
Dizabilitics and also provide reasopable accomimodation in the workplace,

The Coumneil also entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with KCB Foundalion on various areas of
collaboration including education and cconomic cmpowerment. Under KCDB's Lducation Scholarship
programnte, the foundation raised the number of bencliciarics from 240 ta |,000 joining secondary schaols. In
addition, the Coungil is collaborating with Lquity Uoundation through the Elimu scholarship program funded
by Waorld Bank and Government of Kenya, This program reserves 10% of the scholarship to learners with
disabilitics and those who depend on Persons with Disabilities. The program also provides mentorship and
leadership teaining For beneliciarics in seeondary schools,

In addition, the Council participated in the 2™ Inwmational Conference on Peace, Securily and Social
Cnterprise at the Mwai Kibaki Convention Cenire in Mount Kenya University. 'The conlerence themed "Role
of Universities, Public and Private Sectors in Peacebuilding for Sociceconemic Development'
came as the country heads into the 2022 General Election. The Executive Director represented the Council ina
punel discussion and cited Persons with Disabilities as huge beneficiaries of peace, adding that during times of
conflicl, Persons with Disabilities bear the brunt of wviolence, cconomic uncertaintiss and humanilarian
inlerventions that are not inclusive,

The Council also entered into & Memorandum of Understanding with Light for The World (LFTW) for
partnership in developing programmes that cnhance the wellbeing of Persons with Disabilitics in Kenva, Areas
af engagernent include 1,70 Financing, economic empowerment and employment of Persons with Disabilities,

The Council in parinership with the Ministry of Ilealth (MOH) trained county referral hospital disability
medical assessmient teams on the new Disability Medical Asscssment and Categorization Guidelines
developed by MOIL

Further, the Council organized a consultative meeting with the National Assembly Departmental Commitice
on Labour and Social Welfare on th March 2022 to build consensus and [obbying for fast tracking on the
enactment of the Persons with Disabilities Amendment Bill 2021 into Jaw. During the meeting the Council
presented its comments on the Bill with the inpul so as to enrich it. The Council also engaged a number of
stakeholders and parmers in rolling oul the new registration system. Key pariners engaged included CBM
International, KCB Bank Kenya Lrd, Light for The World amang cthers.
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The Council entered inta MOU with AMELEF in developing a framework for provision of assistive devices to
Persons with Dizabilitics and the registration of Persons with Disahilities in areas where AMREF is cperating.
In the MO, the Council will be responsible for identilying polential beneficiaries for assistive devices and
those to be registered during the mass registration activities while AMREF will lead in the provision of
logistical suppaort and sourcing for sponsors to support the provision of the devices,

Other partners the Council collahorated durving the vear included: Kenya National Human Rights Commission,
Kenya Pipeline Company, Catholic Reliel, Media houses, Council of Governors, County governments, Open
Society Initiative, Lguity Bank, among others,

12. Challenges

In delivering on its mandate, the Council experiences a number ol challenges that alTecled ils performance
durimye the yvear, Some of these included:

i Budget cul and delays in disbursement of funds by the National Treasury affected the achievement of

the programme targets for the year,

i, Unmel demand Tor services due (o imadeqguate funding and inereased vulnerability of Persoms wilh
Disabilities as a result of socio-sconomic shocks.

i, Uncoordinated social protection interventions by various state and non-state actors,

iv. Inadequate office space in both headauariers and county offices,

v.  Imadequate statting at the Council which is currently at 38% against the optimal level as recommended
b the State Corporations Advisory Committes
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X, ENVIRONMIENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

The Wational Couneil for Persons with Tdisabilities recognizes that in its endeavour to empower Persons with
[disabilitics, 11 18 accountable to stakeholders and the local community within the environment in which it
operates, To this end, we acknowledge that we are responsible o the local communities and the environment
for our coexistence, We believe in getting the envirenment habilahle and sustainable as well as supporting the
local communities and the vulnerable members of our society through a mumber of interventions targeting the
local communities.

We are cognizant of the fact that our communities who we serve are largely poor, marginalised and vulnerable
and therefre the need to be conscious of their plight becomes paramount in dircoting owr clTorts iF we have to
deliver on our mandale, Persons with Disabilities for many vears have experienced a lol of diserimination due
to many factors including cultural, atfituding] and other societal barriers. In this regard, we believe that there
isneed for us to work with the community not only to cnhance understanding but also to ensure that the impact
of cur programmes is felt by the local communities besides Persons with Disabilities who are our targel
beneficiaries.

i} Environmental Perlormance

We are committed to the highest standards of environmental protection. The Council is committed to ensuring
that its operations have a minimum impact on the environment. We aim to minimize any harmful effects and
consider the development and implementation of environmenial standards to achieve this to be of preal
importance. In ensuring the deliberate concerns of the environment are taken care of), the Council established
an envirommental commitlee comprising 7 members whose role is to create awareness on environmental issues
as well as engage in various initiatives on environmental conservation, Tn collaboration with the Kenya Forest
serviee, the Council trained the committes members.

The Council is also g strong player in environmental conservation. We have worked with the Kenva Forest
Service and other local partners to support environmenlal initiatives such as tree planting programmes around
Ihe country’s water catchment areas, To achieve this, we have partnered with several institutions including
speeial schools in tree planting projects. During the year under review, the Council in collaboration with the

Kenya Foresl Rescarch Institute (KEFRT), donated 6,450 tree seedlings Lo selecled special scheols in 3
counties, namely; Kakamepa, Bungoma and Latkipia Counties,

In Waste management we provide disposal bins across all our offices and encourage our stalT and clients to
usi the bins for disposal of garbage. We discourage littering within the compound. We also encourage the
use of electromic communication among staff and with our clicnts to minimize on paper wsape which
contributes greally to forest depletion. For example, our quarterly newsletter is produced online and
circulated 10 the public through our website and social media platforms and alse through our stakcholder
mailing lists.

The Council recognizes that ¢limate change has & wide-ranging effect on the environment, socio-economic and
related seetors, including water resources, agriculture and food security, human health, lerrestrial ecosystems
and biodiversily and coastal zones, Sustainable Development Goals seek to promate a stronger locus on the
alleviation of poverty and inequality amomygst Persons with Disabilitics. Persons with Disabilities face high
vulnerability in situations of climale change and it is in this respect that the Couneil has taken an active role in
engaging with other stakeholders on issues on climate change adaptation and discourses on climate change. In
this regard, the Council participated as a panellist in the 7" Devolulion conference held in Makueni County an
23* to 26" November 2021, During the panel discussion under the theme Vidnerability and resilience in the
Joce of climate change, the Couneil highlighted the impact of climate change 1o Persons with Disabilities and
how partnerships can play a part in climate change adaptation.
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i} Employee Welfare and Wellness
At the Council, we believe that investments in wellness programs give employees incenlives, fools, social
support, and stratepics Lo adopt and maintain healthy behaviour, Additionally, we belicve that wellness enables
individuals to make better choices about their own health, take contral of it for their own beneliL and
ultimately give their best to the organization, Wellness therefore is a findamental foundation for the
organization”s growth and sustainability,

During the year, we organized a number of activitics aimed at improving the wellbeing of our employees, The
Council constituted a Committee on Mental Health which looks into issues affecting stafl and sensitizing staft
on mental bhealth related issues. A mental health sensitization [orum for all staff facilitated by Ministry of
Health was held in May 2022,

The Council strives to ensure a safe and healthy working environment for all its emplovees and clicnts. As we
continved Lo operate in the post COVID-19 cra, the Council conformed with the Government of Kenya
COVID-19 protocols. The Council implemented safe working conditions for staff during the period. Some of
the measures applied included provision of hand sanitizers to employees and use of virtal meetings with Lhe
public among others.

lo enable the Council staff to deliver effcctively, the Council recognizes the importance of conlinuous
learning by the stall ay critical to every person’s success. We belicve that new skills and knowledge are
building blocks that enables the staff to work and adapt to the ever-changing work environwment. In this
respect, the Council supporied a number staff for various training epportunitics [or profossional development
and new skills acquisition,

iii) Market Place Practices.
The Couneil procurement of goods and services is guided by the Public Procurement and Assel THsposal Act
2015 and the Public Procurement Regulations 2020, The procurement of goods and services are therelore
subjected to the laid down procedures and the Annual Procurement Plan which is guided by the Annual
workplan and budgets.

It line with legal requirements under Access to Government Procurement Opportunitics {AGPOY, the Coungil
reserves 30% ol ils annual procurement budget for vouth, women and Persons with Disabilitics. In this regard,
in the Financial Year 2021722, the Council awarded tenders/contracts to the Youth, Women and Persons with
Diisabilitics worth Kshs, 117,525,026,

The Council also conforms with the principle of Buy Kenya build Kenya, In this regard, all assistive devices
provided to Persons with Disabilities are sourced from within the country maost of which are locally produced.

iv) Corporate Social Respousibility / Community Engagement

Enhancing Public Health and Safety.

To commemorate the World Day of Remembrance for Road Crash Victims, the Council supported the
National Spinal Injury Hospital in observing the day by domating 16 reclining wheelchairs and 6 quad canes to
the hospital. The event which was also supported by the Nalional Transport Safely Authority was aimed at
raising awareness on the impact of road crashes thus resulting to Increasing the rate of disability,
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IV. REPORT OT TIE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit ther report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended Junc 30,
2022 which show the state ol the Counel allairs,

Principle Activitics
The principal activities of the Council are:

[. To issue adjustment orders under Section 24 of The Persons with Disabilities Act, 2003,

2. To fommulade and develop policies designed to achleve equal opporlunitics Tor Posons with
Disabilities, to rehabilitate PWDs, protect and promaote their rights,

3. Mo corporale with the government during National Census to ensure that accurate figures of Persons
with DMsabilities are established in the country for puwrposes ol planning,

4. To recommend measures to prevent discrimination apainst Persons wilth Disabililics.

5. To register PWIs, institutions, asscciations and organizations whers services are provided for them,

6. To provide assistive devices and other cguipment to PWs,

7. To carry out measures For public information on the rights of Persons with Disabililics and the
provisions of the PWDs Act.

Resuits
The results of the Counedl Tor the year ended Tune 30, 2022 are set out an page | to 5.
Directors

The members of the Beard of Directors who served during the vear ave shown on page +i to xi in accordance
with PWID Acl 2003,

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Couneil in sceondance with Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Crder of the Board

||I.

i

il Susan Nalula Wekesa
Ag. Corporation Secretary
Nairahi

Date.. H[Eﬂf(ﬂﬂﬂj
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NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

V. STATEMENT OF MRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012, Section 14 of the State Corporations Act and Section
9-10 of Persons with Disabilities Acl, 2003 require the Difectors to prepare annual report and financial
statemnents in respeet o Council, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Council at the end
of the financial vear and the operating results of the Council for that year. The Directors are also required to
ensure that the Couneil keeps proper accounling records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
position of the Council, The Directors are also responsible lor safcpuarding the assets of the Council,

The Dircetors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Council financial statements, which
give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Councll for and as at the end of the financial vear ended on
June 30, 2022, This responsibility includes: (i) Mainfaining adequate financial management arrangements and
ensuring that these comtinue (o be effective thronghout the reporting period: (i) Maintaining proper
aceounting reeords, which diselose with reasonable accuracy al any fime the financial position of the Council;
(lif) Designing, implementing and maintaining internal conivols televant o the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether
duc to error or fraud; (iv) Safeguarding the assets of the Council; {v) Selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and (v1) Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances,

The Directors accept responsibility for the Council financial statements, which have been preparsd usinig
appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity
with Tnternational Mublic-Sector Accounting Standards (TPSAS), and in the manner required by the PEM Act,
2012 and Lhe Persons with Disabilities Act, 2003, The Dircctors are of the opinion thal the Council financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of Council transactions during the financial year ended June 30,
2022 and of the Council financial position as al thal dale,

The Dirgctors further confirms the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the Council, which
have been relied upon in the preparation of the Council financial statements as well as the adequacy ol the
svstems of internal financial control.

MNothing has come o the attention of the Direetors w indicate that the Couneil will not remain a going concern
lior al least the nest twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The Council financial statements were approved by the Board on 23 Sepiember 2022 and signed on its hehalf by:

=T

Dr. Michael Munenc Mr. Harun Maalim Hassan
Acting Chairperson of the Board Executive Director
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS
WITH DISABILITIES (NCPWD) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022

PREAMELE
| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
an the financial statements.

B, Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectivensss of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effactivensass of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemenied by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal control, risk management and
govaernance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the finaneial
year under review,

The three pars of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Fublic Finance Management Act, 2012 and the FPublic Audit Act, 2015, The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORET ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CQualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of National Council for Persons
with Disabilities (NCPWD) set out on pages 1 to 38, which comprise of the statement of
financial position as at 30 June, 2022, statement of financial pedormance, statement of
changes in net assets and the statemeant of cash flows and staterment of comparizon of

Beporr of the dwditor-Cenerad on National Cowaedd for Peesons with Disalalities (INCERVED for the pear ended
30 e, 2022



budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a sumimary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions
of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015, |
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, were necassary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Clualified
Opinion section of my repornt, the financial statements present faitly, in all matenal
regpects, the financial position of the National Council for Persons with Disabilities
(NCPWD) as at 30 June, 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with international Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and Persons
with Dizabilities Act, 2003,

Basis for Qualified Opinion
1. Unsupported Infrastructure and Equipment Expenditure

Statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial
statements reflects grants and subsidies (programmes) amount of Kshs.1,198,129,194
which includes infrastructure and equipment support amount of Kshs, 7,563,874, Included
in this amount is Kshs. 1,219,600 relating to completion of three classrooms at 5t Joseph
Kiomiti for the Blind in Kisii. However, despite the provision of certificate of practical
completion for the works, no evidence of centificates of work done were provided for audit.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and propriety of the expenditure of Kshs, 1,218,600
could not be confirmed.

2, Long Outstanding Current Portion of Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements
reflects current portion of receivables from exchange transactions balance of
Kshs.22 355 522 Included in this amount is Kshs. 16,530,080 advanced to various persons
with disability to raise capital through Local Furchase Order (LPO) and Local Service Order
(L30) financing. As previously reported, the procuring enlities were required to channel
funds through the Ceouncil o prevent debtors from defaulting. However, on the contrary, the
procuring  entities paid the debtors directly resulting to a defaulted amount of
Kshs. 16,530,090 which has been outstanding for mara than twa (2) years.

in the circumstances, the recoverability of current portion of receivables from exchange
tranzactions balance of Kshs. 16,530,090 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with Internaticnal Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions  (1SSAls). | am independent of the National Council for Persons with
Disabilities (NCPWD) Management in accordance with 15541 130 an Code of Ethics, |
have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accardance with the IS54] and in accardance
with other ethical requirements applicable to periorming audits of financial statemeants: in
Kenya. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Repend oof the duditieCiemeral an Nolfomed Clorencdt for Deryomrs withe Disefilites (NCPHIY far e vear emded
U Swee, 2022
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judament, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

1. Budgetary Control and Performance
1.1 Under-Expenditure

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final expenditure
budget and actual on comparable basis totalling to Kshs 2,063,545 924 and
Kshs. 1,496,062 150 respectively, resulling to an under-expenditure amounting o
Kshs 567,483,774 or 28% of the budget.

In the circumstances, under-expenditure affected the planned activities and may have
impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

1.2 Improper Transfer of Expenditure Votes

The statemant of financial performance reflects that the Council incurred expenditures
totaling to Kshs.285,168,558 for operations. However, the approved budget
communication from State Department for Social Protection dated 01 September 2021
reveal that the rationalized recurrent budget was Kshs 1,475,000,000 which included
Kshs.185,000,000 for operational expenditure resulting in  over-expenditure of
Kshs.100,168,585. Management has indicated that Kshs.22 000,000 and
Kshs.62,000,000 was reallocated from albinism programme and cash transfer programs,
respectively both totaling Kshs. 84 000,000.

In the circumstances, the beneficiaries for albinism and cash transfer programmes for
persans with severe disakbilities did not receive the funds.

2. Unresolved Prior Year Matters

In the audit report of the previous year, a number of audit issues were raised under the
Report on Financial Statements, However, Management has not resolved the issues
raised.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matiers described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, | confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resaurces have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way,

Report of the Awdiror-Gencral on National Council for Persons with Disabilities (NCPWTY for the year ended
30 Jine, 2022
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Basis for Conclusion
1. Unfunded Financial Commitmenis

The statemeant of financial position and as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements
reflects trade and other payables balance of Kshs 80,616,944 which includes unfunded
commitments of Kshs 58,475,733, This was contrary to Regulation 51(2) of the Fublic
Finance Management (National Gowvernment) Regulations, 2015 requiring that
expenditure commitments for goods and services shall be controlled against spending
and procurement plans approved by the responsible Accounting Officer, based on
allocations and allotments from approved budgets.

In the circumstances, the Management was in breach of the law.
2. Arrears to Persons with Severe Disability

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 6(a) to the financial
statement reflects cash transfer from other government entities amount of
Kshs. 1,575,000 000 which includes an amount of Kshs.1,190,000,000 relating to cash
transfer to persons with severe disabilities. However, records provided for audit by the
State Department for Social Protection indicate that 37,023 out of 47,000 potential
beneficiaries were included in the payroll of persons with severe disabilities during the
year under review. A total of Kshs.937,521044 was paid leaving a balance of
Kshs.252 478,956 unpaid to the remaining 9,977 beneficiaries.

No explanation was provided why the Council had not paid the accrued arrears to
beneficiaries of Kshs 252,478 956,

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards for Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAl) 3000 and 4000, The standard reguires that | comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. | believe that the
audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As reguired by Section 7{1)(a) of the Public Audit Act. 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter(s) described in the Basis for Conclusion, |
confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal
controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Report of the dwditor-Cleneral on National Council for Persons with. Disabilitiey (NCPII) for the vear ended
0 S, 2022
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Basis for Conclusion
1. Persons with Albinism Support Program

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial
statements reflects grants and subsidies (programmes) amount of Kshs.1,198,129,194
which includes Kshs.88,808 912 in respect to persons with albinism support program.
Physical inspections conducted in February, 2023 revealed the fallowing anomalies:

{i). There were instances of sunscreen |otions, lip balm and after sun lotions were out
of stock in most hospitals.

{i). There was lack of a demand analysis by regions for the skin care products.

(iii). There was no structured process for issuance by dispensing units of the skin care
products. For instance, in hospitals there is need to use prescriptions by
dermatologists for client to be issued, instead the beneficiaries were just being
Issued with the products upon presentation of people with albinism card.

(iv). The record keeping of the products receipts and issue were inaccurately
maintained rendering the records unreliable,

(v). Lack of sensitization by the Council on its products resulted in misunderstanding
of expiry date by the dispensing unit. Example in Jaramogi Oginga Odinga
Teaching and Referral Hospital a latest skin care product delivered had been
condemned as having expired due to misinterpretation of the expiry dates
indicated on the products.

(vi). Lack of an approved operational manual that provides the framework upon which
the program is run, criteria for registration of beneficiaries, procedures for issuing
of sunscreen lotions, implementation, monitoring and evaluation of program and
maintenance of proper records.

In the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls for dispensing of Councils
products to the beneficiaries could not be confirmed.

2. Tools of Trade

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 15 o the financial
statements reflects grants and subsidies (programmes) amount of Kshs.1,198,129,194
which includes Kshs. 10,296,154 in respect to tools of trade. However, physical
inspections carried out in February, 2023 revealed that the Council had not tagged its
danated tocls of trade. Further, tools of trade were donated to some beneficiaries who
did not have technical know-how in their areas of trade; and there were instances where
the beneficiaries did not use the tools of trade given.

In the circumstances, the effectiveness of the programme intended objective of
empowering the beneficiaries could not be confirmed.,

Report of the Auditor-Gencral on National Council for Persons with Disabilifies (NCPWIY for the vear ended
Fi Suine, 20022
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The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards for Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAI) 2315 and 2330. The standards require that | plan and perform the
audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
control, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all
material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statemeants in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determinas is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assesasment of the effectiveness
of internal controlg, risk management and governance.,

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Council's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Council or to cease aperations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

In addition to the respansibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Beard of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Council's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adeguacy and effectiveness of the control
environment,

Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whaole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantea that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

Report of the Awditor-CGeneral on Natfona! Cowncil for Persons with Disabilities (NCPWD) for the vear ended
30 dune, 2022
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reasonably be expected to inflience the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
perfarmed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(8) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7{1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of ohe or mare of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstaterments caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be matearial in relation to the financial staterments being audited may
oceur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detsct
misstaiements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectivenass to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
palicies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISS8Als, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and abtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainiy
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council's
ability to continue to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
| am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit

Repart af tha Auditar-GFeneral on Netional Couneil for Persons with Disgbilities (NCPWD) for the year ended
J0 e, 20022
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report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Council to cease to
sustain its services.

s+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staterments,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Council to exprass an apinion on the financial statements.

o Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances,

| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where
applicable, related safequards.

S

CPA Nan a ~eBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Mairobi

28 April, 2023

Report of the Auditor-General on Mational Cowsctl for Persons with Disabilities (NCEWD) Jar the vear enced
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NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

YII. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022

2UE2-2021

0212022

Kshs Kshs
| Revenue fl'Dl.'l‘l_jﬂl}I.'l-.t.!...’-i_l.'..'tha'l'l ge t_mnsuctiuns K |
Transfers from other Government entitics (i L.375.000,000 1,08, GO Uit
| Public contributions and donations ' 5,842,784 2,206,040
i 1,580,842.784 1,411,206,040
Revenue ﬁ'ﬂlﬁ_cﬁlmuge iransactions : '
Other ingome b 810,180 1238616
g 6810180 1,238,616
Total revenpe - 1,587,652,964 |  1.412,444,656
Expenses i i & Sin
Use of goods and services 9 60,025,807 47.773,484
Employee costs G 179,060,205 | 168,758,218
Board L-'.x!;enses [ 24810469 25562224
Depreciation and amoertization expense . 12 18,601,720 | 14,0327
Repairs and maintenance I3 6,071,608 5.800.156
Comiracted services i [ 4 8,460,877 | [, 198 904
Grants and subsidices { Programmes) 15 1,198, 129,194 1,051, 881,205
; i |
Tuotal expenses . 1,496.062,150 1,295.013,001
Surplus for the year 91,590,815 117,431,655

The notes set out on pages 6 to 31 form an integral part of the Financial Statements

The Financial Stalemenls set oul on pages | o 3 were signed on behall ol the Board of Ditectors by

9l

Exccutive Thrector
Mr. Harun Maalim Hassan

1| Page

K1
Head of Finance & Accounts

Cuthering Amunga Wameyo
ICPAK Mo, 8964

Datelgll\‘l.'llg

Chairperson of the

arc

Dir. Michael Munens
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NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
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VUL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

2021-2022
Kshs Kshs
Assety - - ' -
Current Aswets T a
| Cash and eash eguivatents R 233,733,041 159,667,505
Receivables from exchange Lansactions 17 22355522 26,831,419
| Receivables from non-exchange transactions 18 368;?30.59& | 579500000
Invenloricy ' 19 1,821,400 :
Stalf Advances B 99,6000} 315,000
Mrepayment - 21 5.837.322 -
Tutal Current Assets . [ 634,596,885 766,313,925

Non-Currcnt Asscts

Properly, plauL ard cquipmenl = 03 608 470 92'_.'.-'-'51, 180

Total Non-Current Asscts 93 Er[lﬂ,aﬂtl [ 92,754,180 |
Total Assets 5 - 728,205,364 | 859,068,105
' Liabilitics — )

Current Liabilitics -
| Trade and olther payables 23 06 16,944 276,288,000

Current Provision > =1 24 L Lan, o 3,480,000

Tuotal Current Liabilities : 61,776,944 279,768,000
“Total Liabilities ' f 61,776,944 | 279,768,000
Net Assets

Reserves 169,916,092 174,378,592

Accumulated surplus 4094, 5£2_323 ' 404,921 513
_ Total Net Assets _ 006 423-.420 57930105

Total Net Asscts and Liabilities =y 728.205,364 859,068,105

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 5 were signed on behalf of the Beard of Directors by:

i) S
dalim 1lassan Catherine Amunga Wameyo I, Michael Mu:km

M, Haruw

Lxeeutive Ditgelor ITead of Finance & Accounts Chairperson of the Board
ICPAK No. 8964
pare. 19 /(A 2y pate.. A9 ;. 4023..
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NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

IX. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Revaluation Accumulated Capital/ , Taotal
reserve surplus | Development
| Grants/Fund
- Kshs ___ Kshs Kshs Kshs
CAsatJuly 1,2020 20,111,731 287,489,857 149,729,362 466,330,950
Surplus for the year | - 117.431.655 117,431,655
Transler toffrom accumulated surplus - | - __ -
Transfer ol cacess depreciation on {4.462,500) - - {4462 5060
revaluation
_ As at June 30, 2021 24,649231 404921512 149,729,362 579,300,105
|
As at July 1, 2021 24,649,231 404,921,512 149729362 579,300,105
Surplus for the year - 91590815 = 91,590.815
Transfer toffrom accumulated surplus o LAl -
Transfer of cxcess depreciation on (4,462,500 - (e 462 500)
revaluation
As at June 30, 2022 20,186,731 496,512,327 149729362 666,428,420

3|Page NCPWID- Annual Report & Financial Statements 2021/2()22



NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSCNS WITH DISABILITIES

Annual Report & Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

X. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 34 TUUNFE 2022

2021-2022

2020-202 1

Cash Nows from operating activitiey
BReceipts
Translers [rom othor government entilics
| Public contributions and donations
Oiher meome
Recervables rom exchange Iransactions
:_:R.Eﬂﬂl‘_‘«'ﬂblﬁs flrom nnn—&achﬂuga transactions
Total Receipis

Paymenis
Lise of goods and services
Employee costs
Board Expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Contracted services

Granls and subsidics (Progranmmes)
Tatal Payments

;_Fﬁ‘t__ltﬂﬁ;]_-liﬁt;wg t_'r'om?{nsﬁd El} operating activities

| Cash flows trom 'i_lw_csﬁn'g_aelivilies
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and mtangible assets
! Met cash flows used in investing activities

| Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at | July
Cash and cash cquivalents as at 30 June

Ihe Finaneial Statements sel oulon pages | to 5 were signed on behalf of the Board ol Dircetors by:

Mr, IETUn Maalim Hassan
Executive Director
[CPAK No. 8964

4| Page

Catherine Amungs Wameyao
Head of Finance & Accounts
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6,810.180
4,475,897
579,500,000

1,802,878.861 :

64,731,960
183,228,125
24,917,910
6,073,698
7,988,877
1.415.954 238
1,702.894.807

99,984,054

(23.918.518)
(23,918,518)

159.667.505
235,733,041 |

D, Michag! M m

Chairperson of the Board

Datukﬂgwaﬁa\ﬁ

Kzhy

829,500,000
2,206,040
1.238.616
6,265,447

$39.210,103

46.373.484
167,261,323
25,562,224
5,806,156
1,198.904
1.088,793,963
1,335,196,053

| (495,985,950)

(20.373,182)
(20,373,182)

676,026,638
159,667,505
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NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statemenis
For the year ended June 30, 2022

XIl.. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The National Council for Persons with Disubilities is established by and derives its authorily and
aceountability from Persons with Disabilities Act, 2003, The Council is fully owned by Government of
Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya, The Council’s principal aclivity is to promate and protect equalization of
opportunities and realization of human rights for Persons with Disabilities to live decent livelihoods,

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCLE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statemends have been prepared on a historical cost basis cxeepl e the medsurement at re-valued
amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, markelable sceurities and financial fnstruments at
Fair value, impaired assets af their estimated recoverable amounts aned actuarially defermined lighilities at their
present wvalue, The preparation of financial statements in conlornmily with Inlermational Poblic Sector
Avvounting Standards (TPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. 1L also requires management to
exercise judgement in the process ol applying the Council aecounting policies,

The financial statements have been prepared and presenled in Kenva Shillings, which is the functionsl and
reporting currency of the Council,

The [inancial slatements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State Corporations Act, the

Persons with Disabilitics Acl and International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting
policies adopted have been consistently applicd o all the years presented,

6|Page NCPWD- Amnnal Report & Financial Statements 202172022



NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Stafemenis
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

i} New and amended standards and interpretations in ssue effective in the year ended 30 June
2022
IPSARB deferred the application date of standards from 1% January 2022 owing to Covid 19, This was
done to provide entities with time to effectively apply the standards. The deferral was set for 19
January 2023,

ii) New und amended standards and interpretations in issuc bul not yet effective in the vear ended
30 June 2022,

Standard TEll'uu.live date and Impact

[PSAS 41: Applicable: 19 January 2023:

Finaneial The ohjective ol IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial reporting of

Insirimments financial assets and Habilities that will prasent relevant and uselul informalion to I
users of linanvial slatements for their assessment of the amounts, ming and
uneertainty ol an enlity’s [ulwe cazh flows,

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more wseful information
than IPSAS 29, by [

= Applying a single classification and measurement model for financial
assets thatl considers the characteristics of the asset’s cash flows and the
obyjective for which the asset is held;

= Applying a single forward-looking expecied credit loss model that is
applicable to all financial instruments subjeel Lo impainment testing; and

« Applying an improved hedge accounting model that hroadens the |
hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develaps a I
sirong link belween an entity’s risk management strategies and the
aceounting treatment for instruments held as part of the risk management
strategy.

The standard iz not applicable w the L‘.ouncg]l_

TlPage NOPWD- Avmeal Report & Financial Sratements 202[/2022



NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED

Standard |

Effective date and impact: |

TPSAS 42:
Social Benelits

Applicable: 1" Janvary 2023

The objective of this Standard is to Improve the relevance, (aithiul
representativeness and comparability of the inlvrmation that a reporting entity
prrovides in ils financial statements about social benelits, The information provided
should help users of the [inancial statements and general-purpose financial reports
assess;

(a) The natwre ol such social benefits provided by the entity;

(b} The key leatures ol the operation of those social henefit schemes; and

{e) The impact of such social bencfits provided on the entity’s financial
performance, linancial position and cash flows.

The Council will adopt the standard becavse of the cash transler Lo persons with
severe disabilibvs social protection programme. The progranune aims o improve
livelihoods of 47,000 households of persons with severs disabiliies by disbursing
bi-nonthly stipeid of Kshs 4,000 per beneficiary,

Amendments to
Other TRPSAS

resulting from
PSAS 41,
Financial
Instruments

Applicable: Ist January 2023:

a) Amendments fo IPSAS 5, to updale the guidance refated to the components
of borrowing ¢osls which wore inadvertently omitted when 1PSAS 41 was
jasuel,

by Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on hedging and
credic risk which were inadverlently omitted when TPSAS 47 was issued,

e} Amendments to [PSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for
Baneial guarantee contracts which were lnadverlently omitted when
IPEAS 41 was issoed.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the puidance on classifying financial
instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertently
omitted when [MSAS 41 was issued.

The standard is nol applicable to the Council

Oither

improvements
IPSAR

B|Papge

Applicable 15t January 2023
o TPSAS 22 Discloswre of Minanctal formation abowt the General Govermnzeni

Secior.
Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA 20083,
= JPSAS 19: Emploves Beacfits

Now deletes the term composile social security benefits as it is no lunger defined in
IPSAS.

o IPSAS 22 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement
Standard no longer included in the 2021 TPSAS handbook as it is now superseded
by IPEAS 4| which is applicable from §st January 2023,
The standard is not applicable to the Couneil

NCPWD- Annual Repori & Finanetal Siatements 202 172022



NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Standard Effective date apd impact:
IPSAS 43 Applicable tst January 2025
The standard sets out the principles lor the recognition, measurement, presentatiorn,
anud disclosure of leases, The objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide
relevant information in a manner that [zithfully represents those transactions, This |
information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the cflfeet that |
leases have on the financial position, financial performance and cashllows of an
- Lintity.
The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present information on
rizhi of use assets and lease liabilities,

The standard Is not applicable to the Couneil
IPSAS d44: Applicable Ist Tanuary 2025 = .
Mon - Current The Standard requires,
Aszels held for Assets that meet the crileria Lo be classified as held for sale to be measured at the
sale and lower of carrving amount and [air value less costs to sell and the depreciation of
Discontinued such assets o cease and: :
Diperalions Assers that meet (he criteria to be classified as held for sale o be presented

separately in the stalemenl of financial position and the results of discontinued
operations (o be presented separately in the statement of financial performance.

3 The standard is not applicable to the Couneil

iii) Farly adoption of standards

The Council did not early-adopt any new or amended slandards in year 20210/2022,

9|Page NOPIVER- deviad Report & Financial Stotenrenits 20212022



NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue recognition
i) Revenue from Non-exchange transactions
Fees, taxes and fines

The Council recopnizes revenues from faes, taxes and fines when the event occurs and the assel recognition
criteria are mel. I'o the extent that there is a related condition attached that would pive rise to a liahility o
vepay the ameount, deferred income iz recognized instzad of revenue. Other non-exchange revenues are
recognized when it is probable that the Future economise benelits or service potential associated with the asset
will low 1o the Couneil amd the Tair value of the assel can be measored relisbly.,

Transters Trom other Government Futities

Bevenues Trom non-exchange transactions with other govermunent eatities are measured at fair value and
recopnizcd on oblaining conteol of the asset {cash, goods, services and properly) i the Llransler is fee rom
conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service pofential related to the asset will flow 1o the
entity and can be measurad reliahly. Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income. Development/capital grants are recognized in the staternent of financial position and realised in the
staternent of comprehensive meeme over te uselul hie of the assets that has been acquired using such funds

i Bevenue from Exchange transactions
Rendering of services
The Council recognizes revenue from rendering of servicas by reference to the stage of completion when the

outcone of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is measured by reference to
labowr hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated lahour hours.

Where the contracl outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only Lo the extent that the
expenises incurred are recoverable.

Nule of poods

Revenue fromn the sale of goeds is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the huyer, vsually on delivery of the gonds and when the amount of revenue can be measurcd
relighly and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will
o Lo the Counetl,

Trterest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The elfective yicld discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrving smmount. The method
applics this yiek! lo the principd] cutstanding to determing interest income each periad.

Dividends
Dividends or similar distributions musl be recegnized when the shareholder’s or the entity’s right o receive
payments is established.

Rental incanne

Rental income arising from operating leases on Investment properties is accounted for on a steaight-line basis
over 1he lease terms and included in revenue,

| Page NCPWD- Amwual Report & Financial Statements 20212022



NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

by Budget Informaiion

The original budget for FY 2021-2022 was approved by the National Treasury on 30 June 2021, Subsequent
revisions o additicnal appropriations were made to the approved hudget in accordance with specific
approvals from the appropriate authorilies, The additional approptiations are added to the original budget by
U Coumeil upon recelving the respective approvals in order to conclude the linal budget.

The Council budget is prepared on a dillerent basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed in the
financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on acerual basis using a classification based on the
nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance. wheress the hudget is prepared o cash basis,

The amounts in the financial stulements wene recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by
presentation fo be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison ol budgel and actual amounts,
prepared on a comparable basis 1o the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparizon of
budgel and actual amounts.

In addition to the Basis dillerence, adjustments to amounts {n the financial statements are also made for
dillerences in the formats and classitication schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial staements
and the approved budget.

A statement Lo reconeile the actual amounts on 2 comparable basis ingluded in the stalement of comparison of
budger and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of linancial perlormance has been presented
under note 24 (d) of these financial statements.

¢} Property, Plant and Equipment

All property, plant and cquipment are stated at cost or at revaluation amount whichever is applicable less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, Cost includes expenditure that s divectly attributabla to the
acquisition of the items. When sipnilicant parls of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Council recognizes such pavis as individual assels with specific useful lives and depreciates them
avcordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is pecfonned, its cosl is recognized in the carmying amount of
the plant and equipment as a replacement i the recognition criteria are salisfied, All other repair and
mmainlenanee costs are recognized in suplus or deficit as ineurred. Where an assel s aequited in o oon-
exchange transaclion formil ov nominal consideration the asset iz initally measored al it Tair value,

Depreciation of assets is charged on a straight-line hasis over the useful life of an asset, Depreciation iz
charged at rales caleulated to allocate the cost or valuation of the asset less any estimated residual value as
followws;

Buildings 2.5%
Maotor vehicles 2505
Cffice equipment, Turniture & Fittings |2 584
Compulers 33.23%
Solbware 33.33%

The Counell derecognizes ilems of property, plant and equipment and for any significant part of an asset upeon
disposal or when future cconomic benelits or service potential s expected from its continuing use. Any gain
or loss arising on de-recognition ol the assots (caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and carrying amount of the asset) is ineluded io the surplus or delicil when the asse @ derccognized)

I1|Page NCPWD- Annual Report & Financial Statements 2021/2022



NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Repori & Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

t} Invenlories
Iovenlory 1s measwred al cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received through non-
exchange trapsactions {lor no cost or lor a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is itz fair value al the dat
of acquisition, Costs incurred in bringing cach product Lo its present Tocation and conditions are accounted lor,
as Tollowes:

i} Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighled average cost methad,

it} Vinished goods and work in progeess: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of

manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs,

Afier initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, However, Lo the
gxtent that a <lass of inventory s distributed or deployed at no charge or for a nominal chares, that olass of
inventary is measured at the lower of cost and currenl replacement cost. Net realizable value is the eslimated
selling price in the ordinary course of aperations, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or dismribution, Inventorics are recognized as an expense when
depluyed [or ulilizalion or consumption in the ordinary course of operations of the Entity,

¢) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Council has & prosent obligation {legal or constructive) as a cesult ol' a
past event, it is probable that an outllow ol resuurces embodying ecomomic henefits or service potential will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimaie can be made of the amount of the ohligation,

Where the Council expects some or all of 2 provision to be reimbursed, [or example, under an insurance
conlract, (he reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain,

The expense relating o any provision is presented in the statement of financial perlformance net of any
refmbursement.

1) Contingent Liabilitics

The Council does not recognize a contingent liability, bul discloses details of any contingencies in the notes o
the financial statements, unless the possibility of an oulllow of resources embodying economic benelits or
service polenlial is remoele.

g) Contingent Assets

The Council does not recopnize 4 contingent asser, but discloses details ol o possible asset whose existence is
contingent on the vecurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events not wholly within the
control of the Council in the noles to the financial statements. Contingent asscls are assessed continually 1o
ensure that developments are appropristely reflected in the financial stalements. If it has become virtally
certain that an inflow of economic benelils or service potential will arfse and the asset’s value can be
measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period in
which the change oceurs.

h} Nuture and purpose of reserves
The Council ereates and maintains capital replacement development reserve in terms of specilic reguirements,
a} The capital replacement development reserve may only be utilized for purchasing items of propeety,
planl and cquipment and payment of grants to programs,

12 |Page NOPIWE Anngal Report & Financial Statements 202472022



NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

b) Whenever an asset is purchased oul of the eapital replacement development reserve frtay, @n amount
cqual to the cost price of the asset is translerred from the capital replacement development reserve and
the accumulated surplus is credited by a corresponding amount,

i) Changes in Accounting Policies and Fstimates
The Council recagnizes the clltets of changes in accounting policy retrospectively, The affeets of changes in
accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is impractical.

§) Emnployee Benefits

Retirement bonelil plans

The Council provides retirement benefits for its employees, Defined contribition plans are post-employment
benefit plans under which the Council pays fixed contributions into a separate entity {a fund}, and will have
no legal or canstructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the curvent and prior periods,

The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the
year in which they become payable.

Short term Employee benefits
The east of all short-term employes benefil is reeognized during the period in which the employes renders the
related service,

) Related Parties,

The Couneil regards a related party as a person or entily with the ability to exert control individually or
jointly. or to exerciss sipnificant nfluence over the Council and vice versa, Members of key management are
regarded as related parties and comprise the Board of Directors, Exceutive Director and Head of Departments.
Oiher related parties include:

(i} The Parcnt Ministry;
(i) County Govermmenis
(i Other State Corporations and Semi-Autonomous Government Apencies

Iy Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, Bank sccount balances include amounts
held at the Kenyz Commercial Bank at the end of the financial year, For the purposes of these financial
statements, cash and cash equivalents alse include short term cash imprests and advances to authorised public
officers and/or inslitutions which were not surrendered or aceounted for a1 the end of the finemeial year,

m) Recelvables

[#eceivables are non-derivative financial asscts with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active markel. They arise when the Board provides money or services directly to a debtor with no intention of
trading the receivable. Receivables mainly arise from non-exchange transactions which acerue in the ordinary
course of business and there is no intention of teading the receivable:

Receivables are recognized initially at the fair value, They are subscquently measured at amortized costs
using the elfective inlerest method less provision for impairment.

A provision for impaivment of receivables is made when there is objecive evidence that the Council will nat
be-able to collect all amounts due according w the original terns of receivables,
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NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statemenis
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The carrying value less discounts and any impairment provision of impairment is assumed to approximate
their fair valoes, For Dosneiad instruments suchoas shorl-term receivables, no disclosure of fair value is
required when he carrying amounl is 8 reasonable approximation of Tair value,

Revolvables wre classified as currenl assels i payinenl 35 due within one yenr or less (or in (e normal
operating cycle of business, if longer). [ not, they are presented as non-current assels,

i} Payables

Mayables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have heen acquired in the ordinary course of
business from supplicrs. Payables are recogmised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cosl asing the elfeetive mieresl methoed, The historieal cost carrying amount of payahles subject to
the normal eredil terms usually approxdimates fair value,

Payables are classified as current liabilities iF payment is due within one wear or less (or in the normal
operating cyvele of business if longer); If not, they are presented as non-cureent liabilities,

o) Comparative figures
Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial vear have been amended or reconligured to
conform to the required changes in presentation.

i) Subsequent Events

Thete have been no events subsequent to the [inancial year ¢nd with a signilicant impuact on the financial
statements for the vear ended June 30, 2022,

q) Segment Reporting

The Council does not have any branches/reporting segments, All operations of the Council are managed from
the registered nffice. The core husiness of the Council contimies to be, formulating and implementing policies
that are geared towards maimstreaming disability issues in the national economy ogether with other mandates
as stipulated in the PWT Act 2003,

5 SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION IINCERTAINTY
The preparation of the Couneil's fnancial slatements in conformity with TPSAS requires management w make
judgments, estimates and assumptions thal alleol the reporled amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent Liabilitics, al the end of the reporting period. Towever, uncertainty
ahout these assumptions and estimates ¢ould resull in oulcomes thal require & material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset or liahility affected in fihoe periods,

Critieal judgements in applyving the avcounting policies

In the process of applying the Council’s accounting polivics, judgements have been made in determining-
¢ Whether assets are impaired
¢ (lassification of financial assets
& The going concerm

Estlmutes and Assamptiony

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, thal have a significant risk of cavsing a material adjustment o the carrying amounts of assels and
liabilities within the next fimancial year, are described below. The Council based its assumplions snd cstimates
on parameters available when the financial stalements were prepared,

14iTage NCPW - dnmoal Report & Financial Statements 202172022



NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

However, existing cireumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Council, Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they oceur. TPSAS 1,140

Livafied fives anid Residual valuey
The uselul lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicatars to inform petental
Tulure use and value from disposal;

The condition of the asset bascd on the assessment of experts emploved by the Council

The nature of the asset, its susceplibilily and adaptability to changes in technology and processes
I'tie nature ol the processes in which the asset s deployed

Aveailahility of funding to replace the vssel

Changes in the market in relation to the assel

Critical estimates are made by management in determining depreciation rates of property, plant and
equipment.
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NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6 Transfers (rom other Government Entities

Deseription 2021-2022 2020-2021
Unconditional grants from State Department for Social Kshs Kshs
Proteetion _
| Operational grant 185,000, DUD 169,000,000 |
Ea‘%ﬁ'tran%fer to Persans with Severe Disabilities 1,190, 000,000 1 1}41} ﬂni} t}ﬂﬁ
| Persons with Albinism SUDPOIT Program | 100, Dﬂﬂ_fﬂi} ][]'[II ﬂ[]ﬂ 000}

' Development [und 100,000,000 100,000,000

| Total government grants and subsidies | LSTS000,000  1,409,000,000

6 b} Transfers from Ministries, Departments and Ageneies

Mame of the Admowil Anmouni Amount Taotal erant 20212021
ity sending recognized 10 deferred  recognized  income dorving
the-grant Statementof wadber——in-capital the vear
Conprehensive ileferred Fund
Income income

- Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
State | 1,575,000,000 - - | LSTS000000 | 1,402,000,000
Department for | 3
Sacial i
P'rataction = L = |
Total 1,575.000,000 - - LET7S,000.000 1.400,000,000

0 ) Analysis of Cash Flows from Transtcrs [rom Other Government Fntities

Breseription Period ended Comparative
Ji-0un 2422 Perind

=\ ~ Kshs Kkshs

| Total Government grants and subsidies [LSTS000000 1 4{U Ur[JU []GID
| Less: Government grants and subsidies accrued B (368.750.0001  (579.500 'I:I[]{ZIJ
" Government Erants and SIIEldlcﬁ received 1.206,250,000 829,300,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7. Publi¢ Contribulions #nd Donations

Z020-24121

Description 2{21-2022
Kshs
Donatien from National Social Sceurity Fund i =
Danation from Equity Bank Lid e ] ;Uuﬂm =
Donation from Mary Kavata — 20 IZI'DG '
Dromation from Open Soviety Intiative - 1.079.691
Dnnatlon from Leonard Cheshire I miﬂdanm 3.034.093
Dowation from Light for the World 1.300.000
Donation from Myor! Water & Sanitation Co, Lid | Hﬂ]ﬂ_ﬁ
Donation from Assoviation for the Physically Disabled of 00,000
Kenva
Daonation from KCB Bank Kenya S 250,000
Donation from Kenya National Commission on Human Rights 2,000
Donation from Kangema NG-CDF [ 000
Tn.tnl translers and ﬁpnnsnrsh]ps = 5,342,T-8=|_

Kshs

- 2.200,000

G0

2206040

Denabions of Kshs. 1079 million [fom Open Society Initiative was towards review of the Counsil’s strategic
plan, Kshs, 402,000 towards support of Tnternational Day of Persons with Disabilities, Kshs, 3.034 million
from Leonard Cheshire Foundation towards support of NCPWD career portal, Kshs. 125 from Light for the

World and KCE Bank kKenva towards roll-out of the new repistration syslem und Kshs, 52,000 towards

supporl of International Alhinism Awareness Day celehrations,

8. (dher incomes

2020-2021

Dieseriptivn 202 1-2022

Kshs

Training charges on disabilily mainstreaming  5.553.890

Braille Services ' 1,230,000

| LPO Fmanung Service Charpe 1% 3 4,480

D]sl:lu'\ul ofidle © 55t B 21810
Total other income - . 6,810,180 |

Kshis
892,500
322,500

14,376 |

9,240

1,238,616 |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B, Use of Goods aml Services

Description 221-2022 2020-2021
i Al _ Kshs Kshs
| Electricity - = ! 868,997 | 712,700
Water 05,026 437,753
Communication, Supplies & Services 14,088,421 | 13577074
Nomestic Travel 9,147,503 6,814,234
Foreign Travel ) ; 274,799 =]
Printing, Adverlising & Information, Supplics & Services 5470641 1.651.890
o | 80,520 85200
Calering Services o 4,001 5912 3,061,270
Confercnees & %mmﬂh 4 806,593 2,3 I:.]",-fil 15 |
N:ﬂ!{!]'&ﬂ Dav Celebrations - 3,843 037 5.073.663
Tnsurance B 2105445 2,261,5 &0
Staff Uniforms 322,560 -
t'.‘lf'h:e Emd Lmneral Supplies & Eew:ceq - 5,828,500 7773519
Fuel. 0il & Lubricants 3992172 668,800
Rank Service Commission & Charges 180,272 =45 386
Audit Fees o 1,160,000 1,200,000
| Total use of gouds and services Gl Y25 BT _si;'j','?ﬁ',qm [

9.(h) Analysis of Cashflow on Use of Goods and Scrvices

Deseriplion 2RT-2022 Z020-Z021
. KShs KShs
' Total Use of Goods and Serviees "_ I ), 925 BUT 47,773,484
Add: Invenlories paid during the year 1,821,400 T
- Add: Audit fees paid during the year e — ) 3,480,000 | =]
|ess: Provision for Audit fees I'Y 2021722 (1,160,0003 (1.200,000)
Less; Pavables - Jollen Merchanis & Kenya Revenue Authority (335337 | = .
“Total use of goods and Services 64,731,560 46,573,484

10, Emploves Cost

Descriptis 2021-2022 222024
- Kshs Kshs

Salaries and wages ) TT.841,780 | ?5,029,1 63
Employer contribution o hualih umuamx, schemes 18.919.286 21,526,245
Emplover contribution to pc'n:ﬂun schemes 11.097,781 1L316,180
mraff training 6.979.101 3,704 0232
i Transpoit and other allowances ' _ 30,526, fﬂ_?_ 28.404,252
Housing benelits and allowances 33,442,000 28,695,000
Social contributions __ 5 254,000 250,800
Gratuily J i - 3441668
Total Emplovee costs | 179,060,295 168,758,238
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 (L) Analysis of Cash Dow on Employee cosl

Deseription d [l ] 20202021
________ KShs KShs
Total Employee costs 179,080,295 | |68, 758,238
Add: Salary advances issued duri g the year i = "3121'] 000
Add; Prepayment of staff medical insurance during the year 2 5,729,881 e
| Less: Sala\r}r advances reeovered dur ing the year 2 15 4!.']:}} i;_"l.il 16.01 5}"
|ess: Payables - Zamara Pension Section NCPW I3 N {1.346,651) - |
Total Employee costs  183228,125 167,261,323

11, Boarl Expenses

Deseription 20 220-2021
- Kshs ~ Kshs
- Chairman/Directors’ Honoraria. B 1,430,000 | L716.000 |
Sitring allowances C o A300000 8,780,000
Medical Insurance = 636,823 | %39.221
Tnduc’ttﬁn and Tn:tmmg ol 636,903 1.042.778
Travel and accommudutmn {Ineluding Guides) iy 6,771,925 11,944,889
Others allowances Y 4734818 1,239,326
' Total buard expenses : 24,810,469 25,562,224

11 (b} Analysis of Cash {Tow on Board Expenses

Description 2021-2022 2020-2021
Kshs KShs
Total Roard Expenses 24810 409 | 25,562,224 |
Add: Prepayment of Board tmedical insurance during the 07,441 -
year . =
' Total board expenses | 24917910 | 25,562,224

12, Depreciation and Amoriization Expense

Deseription 2021-2022 2020-2021
Kshs Kshs

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets _ 18,601,720 | 14032701

Total depreciation and amortization 18,601,720 14,032,701
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

13. Repairs and Maintenanee

[rescription

Buﬂdmgﬂi e qtatmnx
Furniture & Lqulpml..nl
Vehicles

Cump LLETS ﬂml aums.wrias

14, Contraclted Services

Dreseription

20121-2022
Kshs
1,035,403
S08,301
3,662,448
867,546
6,073,698

2021-2422

2020-2021
K‘ih‘l

2 124 891
503 TE[}
2,740,237
437,248
5,806,156

2020-2021

Professional Services
Cruards & l;u.ut‘it}' BOTYILS

Tntni con lT:lCtBEl services

Rshs
7,050,515
1410362

8460877

14 {b) Analysis of Cash flow on Contracted Services

2021-2022

Kshs

198,904
1,198,904

2020-212 1

|]'£'$EI'i|'I|l‘iﬂll

Total ['.xmtracte_ed_ﬂlzwicer:
lgss: Payables - Kate & Kates Consultancy
Total Contracted Services

15, Grants and Subsidies (Programmes)

escriptiom

KShs
8.460,877
{472.000)
7,988,877

22124122

K&%hs
1,198,904

Li98904

2022021

chcm w1th Disabilities Self Help Groups (SHG)
D[mdili:l‘lh
| Assistive Dovices & Services
| Infrastruciuce & Lqmpmem support
- Lducation suppart
National Disabilily Persuns Urgam_{a[wns {DPOs) W
| Capacity building of Persons with Disabilitics EH(_T - i
Monitoring & Lvaluation of the SHG
| Kegistration of Persons with Disabilitios
Tools of Trade
Cash transfer to Persons with Severe Disabilities
' Persons with A lbinism Support Program
Diisahility Mainstreaming -

=

Total grants and subsidies

Kshs
23,120,000
2,351,625
38,325,628 |
7.563.874
56,582,327 |
5,000,000
20006, Ik
677300
10L631,518
10,296,154
937521 044
98,808,912
5,250,812
1,198,129,194

K.ahn
25,240,000
2490200
30,933,763
10996942
57,795,261 |

4,612, 574_
1240250
8,028,002 |

845,125,000 |

45,419,003

1,031,8581,295
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I5. () Analysis of Cash Flows on Grants and Subsidies {Programmes)

NEscriplion 2021-2(22 | St Bl |
K5hs KS&hs |
' 'Total Grants and subsidies (Programmes) ' 1,198,129, 194 1,031,881,295 |
Add: Payables settled chring the year 276288000 333200668
Tess: Payables secrued durin o the year - {58.462,956) | (276,288,000)
Total grants and subsidies 1415954238 1,088,793,963

16. Cash and Cash Fquivalents

Brescription JEE0-2021
e _ = Ks.h.s —— Kshs

Current accoun 235,733,041 | 159,667,505

Total eash and eash cquivalents 135,733,041 139,667,505

L6 (b) Detailed Analysis of the Cash and Cash Eguiviients

Financial Institution Avcount Number  Currcocy 20212022 2212021

koshs Iushs

a) Current account

Kenya Commercial Bank | 1107116791 KLES  234.289,104 159,609,29] |
Kenya Commercial Bank 1117769690 KES 548,177 ?,H 14
Kenya f‘nmmarcml Bank [ |286RG908T | KES 95,760 55,000 |
Grand Total 235,733,041 159,667,505

17. Reccivables from Exchange Transactions

Curront receivahles 21-2022 202020

Kshs Kshs
Dlhm'exc'ﬁaﬂge debtors 22,355,522 | 26,831,419
Total current receivables [ 22,355,522 = 26,831 "419

The aged analysis ol reccivablos from exchange transaciions is as [ollows:

Description Over 2 years

_ Kshs Kshs

17, (a) Receivables in arrears S | S
Postal Corporation of Kenya B 5835432 5.825.432
Denzin General Supplics - 89,900 | 89500

 Geajus Limited 76,000 76,000
Rongo (anaan Hardware 396,600 396,600 |
 Adopt Activate - ' C 405000 405000
Jushami Fnte_prlses 55,800 55,800
Simuji Inves‘rment 453,462 453 4‘62
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Solocom I".L,enuﬂs

Lnelinite Cuunlrvmdt Busingss Ll]tkﬂgl_l.

Ong'ata Brockview Academy
Summit Human Resource
Risasa Crerprises
Misaman Enterprises Limited
Saints Solutions
syntax Lnterprises Limited
Diomarks Enterprises-IKabarti
Susma Supphiers Limited

| Karakana Outlers Limited

Kyusi Enterprises

| Laconic leon ﬁgcn[:[g:s -
Walbon Lnterpriscs
I FHanitorial Hawle Investmenis
Skyspace Systems [imited
Jakoki lnvestments
ulemy Company Lid
Santian Company Lid
Super Galaxy General Supplics
Nkedaa Tivestments
"'-11:|ulu Traders
Kombani Lnlerprises
Tahary Enterprise
I]-’.‘.;.‘;L_Eutcrprisee; Lid
Comprima Crierprises
Leonte General Supplies
Nagolic Tup Agencics
| G Hesana Lid
Kingpoint Enterprises
T ]'.Ia]-éﬁg Tech Itd
. -Kcndaa.ug General Supplies
Megacomps Applied Tech
Linchem Enterprises
Third Party Logistics
Oasis Comfort Company
-lea-mtsl:lurg Traders Co.
Blessed Wam Ent\'_rpris:us
Lossayan Suppliers
Suko BLnldmg Construction Co, Tid
| Jamphan constroclion EnLi_rerm
Henry Yital Technolopies
. Tutnl iAol

22|Page

B 330,000 330,000
110,000 110.000
~&0,000 80,000
7.000 7.000
475,000 475,000 |
115_1175"_ - 116,126
500,000 500,000
452,000 492,000
400000 400,000
115.000 115,000
- 485,000 185,000
201,600 201,600
o su0,000 | 500.000
341,200 341200
000 | S00,000
1 500.000 SO0L000
492,578 | 492,578
B 400,000 400,000
500,000 | SO0,000
350,000 350.000
500,000 500,000
500,000 500,000
46,550 46,550
500.000 S00,000
500,000 S00,000
250,000 ' 250,000
e 66480 66,480
500.000 500,000
= 500,000 500,000
SHLO00 S00.000
19,500 | 39,500
343.750 343,750
; 500,000 | S00,000
72,000 72,000
500,000 500,000
500,000 500,000
138,664 138,664
B 499 880 499,880
R 500,000 500,000
S00.,000 500000
246,000 446,000
355,000 255,000
22,355,522 22,355,522
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13. Receivables from Non-Exchiange Transactions

Descripiion Hiz1-2022 2020-2021
, B S . . Kshs L _ Kshs
Other debtors (non-exchanpe transactions) || 368,750,000 STEA00,000
| Total current receivables 368,750,000 ST 500,000
The aged analysis of receivables from non-exchange transactions is as lolows:
-3 months Taotal
Particulars Kshs Kshs
Operational Grant T 46,250,000 | 46,250,000 |
Cash transfer to Persons with Severe Disabiliies 207,500,000 297,500,000
Persans with Albinisim Program R ' ES,UUU,UI:J{# | i-S-,'D'i]ﬂ,C'FI'II'ii-E
Taar =il 368,750,000 368,750,000

T2 Invenlories

articithars 222022 2020=2021

T Kshs. Kshs.

Difice Stationerics and Consumables e e 1,821,400 | - |
Total 1821400 =

20 Siaft Advances

Staff Mame 2021222 bl [} e d e
Kshs. Kshs,
. Beth Kimotho ] [ 5,000 |
. Amas Makenzie 3 99600 300,000
Total B 99,600 315,000

21. Prepayment

I*articufnrs 2212022 AE0-21k21
Kshs. shs,
- Medical Tnsurance - Employees : 5,729,881 |
Medical Insurance - Board | — dgwael) |
Clotal i - 58373120 ' «

23|Page NOPWD- Annval Report & Finaeeiol Statements 202 1/2022
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NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
22 (b) Fully Depreciated Asscts

Fully depreciated motor vehicles at original cost and revaluation of Kshs. 45,532,662 are still in use.

Fully depreciated assets at original cost and revaluation are as follows:

Deseriptinn

2024-2022

22421

Kshs Kshs

Motar Vehicles 45,532,662 | 45,532,662 |
l"uru]:luters and related Equipment 25 370,283 21,528,533

| Office Lguipment, Furniture & Flﬂlﬂgs [7.061.596 lﬁ,ﬂ“]-_lf:,:?;?;ﬁ 1
Total 87,964,541 83,098,580

23, Trade and other Payables

Deseription

2021-2022

2022021

P Kshs Kshs
Trade payables 60,616,944 | 276,288,000
Total trade and other payabley 60,616,944 276,288,000

The aged analysis of trade pavables Mrom éxchange tramsactions is as follows:

-3 manths Total

Particulars Kshs Kshs
Jollen Merchants SR 322,560 | 322,560
Kate & Kates Cansnitancy - 472000 N ?? ﬂﬂﬂ
Zamara Pension Scelion NCPWD 1,346,651 | 1,346,651
239 County ‘u’etl:i‘ng LGIT]I'I’!]ILLC Members 747,000 T4T.000
250 Self Help Gmups Economic Empnwe: ment 20,000,000 20,000,000
473 Studenis - "?Lhniamhl]l Suppaort o .I-i,j"].{:ij?é = l 116, 576
6 Institutions - Equipment Support 2,701,522 | 2,701,522
778 Students - Bursary Support 15,861,208 15.861.208
| Association for the Physically Disabled of I{enya 2, 756 650 2 ‘?56 650
Diani J_)1sab111ty Metwork 500,000 500,000

| Kenya Institute of Special Education 1,800,000 1,800,000
Kenya Revenue P:.UThﬂllt‘r 12,?’5’? 12,777

| Kenya Socicty for Deaf Children a O 9R0.000 980,000
I'taining/Capacity Building of 290 SHGs 2,000,000 2,000,000
 Total = 60,616,944 60,616,944
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NMOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. Corrent Provisions

Frovision for Audit fees 1 TR0 3.480,000

Total Provision 1,160,000 3 ,48-0,{“}“ '

25, Cash Generated from Operations

Kshs Kshs
Surplus/Delicit tor the vear ! 55,753,493 117,431,655
Adjusted for: L .
| Depreciation 18,601,720 14.032.701
 Working capital adjustments: |
{Increase}f[}em ease in Lxchange receivables i 4,475,897 | 6,265,447
(IncreaseyDecrease (n Mon-Lxchange receivables 210,750,000 (379,500,000)
| (Inctease)Lrecrease in Invenlories 5 (182140070 | | - . -
{Incféasé}-fﬁéc.raﬂse in E:taff lIJElll and advances 215,400 1,496,915
_Increﬂsv:’[i_)cmmsa] in 1mdﬁ pmﬂblm (215,671 DSE} - {Sﬁ 912 JGGRT |
Increase/(Tecrease) in ather payables (2,320, ﬂl]l]} o 1,200,000
Net cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities C 99.984,054 (495,985,950)

26, Comparison of budget and actual amounts

#. Public Contributions and Donations
The over achievement was due to donation amounting to Kshs. 1.079 million from Open Society Initialive
Lowards review of the Coundil’s stralegic plan, Kshs, 402,000 towards supporl of Inlernational Day of Persons
with Disabilities, Kshs. 3.034 million from Leonard Cheshire Foundation towards supporl of NCPWD career
portal, Kshs, 1,25 millien from Light foc the World and KCB Bank Kenva towards roll-oul of the new
registration system and Kshs. 52,000 towards support of International Albinism Awareness Day celebrations.

b Other Incomes

The over achievement was due to an increase in number o MDAs that complied with the Disability
Mainstreaming indicater of the Perlinmance Contracting period 2021/2022.

¢. Programmes
The under achievemenl was due to 9977 persons with severe disabilities beneficiaries are pending
reinstatement into the payroll for various reasons including case management, relargeting and replacement of
deceased and untraceable beneliciarics 1o bring the payroll to 47,000 benelicisries.

d, Actual on Comparable Surplus Reconciliation
The surplus as per the statement of the Nnancial performance on page one does not tie to that on the
statement of comparison of budgel and actual amounts on page 5 due to differences in accounting basis
(budget is cash basis while statement of financial performance is accrual). The following is reconciliation of
the two amounts:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Kshs
Surplus as per Statemenl of Financial Performance - -":’3_1':'5;913,315

~ Add: Funds RBffwd 486,545,924
Surplus as per statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts ' 578,136,739

27, Employee Benefit Oblipations

The Couneil contributes to the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSFY. This is a defined contribution
Scheme registered under the National Social Security Acl, The Council’s obligation under the scheme is
limited Lo specific contributions legistaled from time to time and is currently at Kshs 400 per employee per
month (Employer contributes Kshs 200 and Employes Kshs 200). Other than NSSF the Council also has a
defined contribulion scheme operated by Zamura Pension Pund. LEmployees conlribute 7.5% while the
Employer contribute 15% of basic salary. Employer contributions are recognised as expenses in the
statement of financial performance under employee cost within the period they are incurred.

28, Financial Risk Management Disclosures

I'he Council activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks. The
Council overall risk managernent programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business
environment and seeks to minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on ils performance by setting
acceplable levels of risk. The council does not hedge any risks in place.

The Council’s financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

a.  Credit Risk
The Council has exposure ta credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable w pay amounts in
full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, as well as trade and
other receivables. The amounts of receivables presented in the statement of financial position are as estimated
by the Council’s management based on their experience and their assessment of the current economic
environment.

The carrying amount of (inancial assets recorded in the financial statements that best represents the Couneil’s
maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 June 2022 is made up as follows:
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Total amount  Fully performing Post dune Impaired
Kshs kshy Kshs kshs
AL30 Junc2022 3
| Receivables from exchange transactions 22.355522 - 22-,:1"55,522
' Receivables from non-cxchange 368,750,000 168,750,000 =
transactions
Slafl advances 99,600 Y A0 . o
Rank Balances 235,733,041 235,733,041 S
Total - 626,938,163 604,582,641 22355522 -
At 30 June 2021
-ﬁécti_;fgﬁl-cs from erchange Lansaclions 26,831,419 - 26,35'1._1 19
Receivables fram non-exchange 579.500.000 "T?E,S_DDEI'EI'[} -
transactions o
| Stall advances I 3|5,'DUU| 315,000 -
RBank bulances . 159.667.505 159,667.505 3
| Total | 766,313,924 | 739482505 26831419 .

b. Liguldity Risk

The Council fully depends an the excheguer for lunding, [n the event that there are delays in the relcase of
tunds by the exchequer, the Council may be exposed to lguidity risk as it will bhe unable to seule its
commitments and meet its Performance Contract Obligations. The Couneil has embarked on seeking for other
domor funds through development of partnerships as a liquidity visk management strategy,

The table below represents cash Nows payable as at the reporting date at the carrving balances:

Less than 1

Belween 1-3

(ver s months

manth moniths
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
- As at 30 Junc 2022 ' - e

Trade Payables - 60,616,944 =2 60,616,944
Provisions 1,160,000 | . O 1160,000
Total L,160,000 60,616,944 - 61,776,944
As at 30 June 2021 o [
Trade Payables _2'}'45,233,01]1} - - 276,288,000
Provvisions 1,200,000 - 2,280,000 3,480,000
Total 277,488,000 = 2,250,000 279,768,004
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¢, Capital Risk Managemen
The ohjective of the Council®s capital risk management is to safeguard the Council’s ability 10 continue as a
geing concern. The Council capilal structure comprises of the following funds:

Kshs Kshs

Revaluation Rescrve B 20,186,731 - 3'4,_454‘9,231

Retained Famings - 490,675,005 404921512
Cupital Reserve 149,720,362 149,729,362
Total Funds - 660,591,098 579,300,105
Total Paysbles 61,776,944 279,768,000 |
Less: Cﬁé_ﬁ and Hank Balances {'2-35_"!33_!]40 ([59,667.505)
| Net Debt/(Excess Cash and Cash Equivalents) (173,956,007) 120,100,495 |
e : $ e St

29, Related Party Disclosures

Nature of related party relationships

Entitics and other parties related 1o the Council include those parties whao have ability 1o exercise control or
exercise signilicant influence over its operating and financial decisions, Related parties include management
personnel, their associates and close family members.

Government of Kenya
The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the Council, halding 100% ol the Council equity
intcresl,

Other Related Parties include:

(i} The Parent Ministry,

(i) County Governments

{iifyOther Stale Corporations and Semi-Autonomous Governmenl Agencics
(iv) Key management,

(v) Board of Directors,

29| Page NCPWD- Anmtial Report & Financial Starements 2021/2022



NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Annual Report & Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022
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All Entities and parties related 1o the Council during the year under review are as per the tahle below:

“2021-21122 220-2021
Kshs Kshs
Transactions with related parties .
a) Sales to related parties
Disability Mainstreaming Audits & Rraille Services 6,777,890 1,215,000
Total g _  a71890 1,215,000
b} Purchases feom related parliey
Fleetricity from KPI.C j 774,617 93,320
Water from Naivobi City Water & Sewerage Co, Lid jz'gfi_li?'-if 55927
Advertisement -GAA E 233,669 1,213,817
Eent expenses paid to National Cereals Produce Board B9.520 85.200
Conference I'm:ﬁ"paid lo Government dgencics 242,000 985,269
Purchase of Adrtime & ntemel -Sataricom I == E -5171] 513 8081593 .
Conerier services - Postal Corporation of I{Eﬂw ) 3619727 5,177,190
Training fees - Kenya Schaool of Guvemm_:ﬁr_ e il 314,798 478,535
Fuel - Natianal Dji Cmpomrmn of Kenya - 41,500 :
 Bank charges - Iimly'! Lmlmlercml Bank ol 160,272 M—ﬂf— 386
Audit fees - Office of Auditor General 1,160,000 | I,EEI'EI-,IDIDG
| Sunscteen Lotions Warehousing & Distribution - KEMSA 4381679 2600 246
Skin Cancer reatment -Ciovernment Hospitals . 1.,"2'-:.3;4,2155.; 1,330,451
Mobilily Devices and Training ) S 8T0.6490 1.767.990
Total = e 30,666,848 | 25,848,424
¢) Grants/Transfers from Government =5 ——
Gitants from Mational Governmeni B 1206250000 [, 00,000,000
IJmlatlmt Imn'l (.rU‘v'EH‘H‘llEHT |_!_'_1_§t_l_t_llT_1|:_rI_]__S__ | 5.000 2,200,000
Total T .- 1206,265000  1,411200,000
' d-j Girants to Government institutions C
' Special Schools Infrastructure & Eguipment support 7,563 874 10,996,942
Total - 7,563,874 10,996,942
¢) Key management compensation B
DHrectors’ F"m oluments 24 ) I_'?,*)]'U 21,98 l:l'_.:"-iif?-
Compensation to key Management 30,483,211 30.310,444
Total 5«5_,%['1_,]_21 : 52,290,983
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3. Commitments and Contingencies

Capital Commitments
There were no capital commitments in both 2022 and 2021

Contingencies

Contingent Liabilities
There were no contingent liabilities in both 2022 and 202

Contingenl Assets
There were no conlingent assets in both 2022 and 2021

31. Evenis after the Reporling Periml
There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting perod.

32. Ultimate and Holding Entity
National Council for Persons with Disabilities is a State Comoration under the Ministry of Public Service,
Grender. Senior Citizens Alluirs and Special Programmes. 1s ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

33. Comparative fiznres
The comparative ligures are the Prior vear figures for the vear ended 30 Tune 2021,

34, Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).
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XL PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments that were
provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persons 1o resolve the varions issues as shown below with
the associated Hime frame within which we expect the issues lo be resolved.

Referente Tssue/ Minagement Foeal Paint person Statns: Timelfrime:
Mo, onthe (hservalions comments 1o resolve the ssue fRewifvad S P date
cxicrnal from Auditor {Neewroi cotid Nt Resodvend) when ve

adie Keport Hlesipmation - et e
INNte fir b
rewoived)

| Basis for
gualitied opinion

i 726 Beneliciaries  These are bencficiaries  Rosabel Githinji Cngoing June 2024
inmorethanone  of the Inug  Jlamii  Chief Disability
cash rransfer Programme (PWSD CT,  Services Officer
programime — Kshs  OPCT and CT OVO)
4 350,000 whi redristered {15

reccive the COVID-19
cash transfor and were
not entitled o do so due
to the C-19% T
regisiration criteria that
wis  largeting  Persons
with Disabilitics not in
any government  cash
transfer programme, To
avoid beneficiaries
recetving  payment  in
more than one cash
transfer programme, the
Council  wrote 1w the
Dircctorale  of  Social
Assistance, Slate
Depariment o Social
Protection on the 18 of
Tume 2020 to verify the
data st of 33,333
beneficiaries against the
Inua Jamii Programme
Payrolls and the
Integrated  Population
Registration Swyslem
{IPES} to check for
duplication across  the
[og  Jamii programme
and contirm [Ds.

In the correspondence,

the Directorate
confirmed that i1
duplicarions of

L bencliciaries’ details
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Dauble payinent
ol 323
Beneliciaries

Kshs 2.1 700000

48 RBeneficiaries
sharing the same
identification
number (17—
Kshs 288.000

were found in the Ina
Tamii Programme
Payralls m the data set
ol 33333 beneficiaries.
The Coungil initiated
measures  through  ils
officers 1o recover the
funds from individuals
wha lraudulently
reaistered and received
multiple payments. Cul
ol Kshs, 4,350,000 the
Council has recovered
Kshs. 62,500 fom |2
beneficiaries. Rocovery
of fiunds is ongoing

These are mdividuals
who received multiple
pavments  under  the
COVID-19 Cash
transfer, These multiple
pavments  arose  from
errars in data provided
by the Field ©Oflcors
who were working in
challenging
circumstances and relied
heavily  om & multi-
agency approach to
colleel data. The Couneil
initiatec TICASLTES
through its field Officers
Lo reeover the funds
from  mdividuals  who
frandulently  registored
and  received mulliple
pavments. Our of Kshs.
20170000 the Cogneil
has  recovered Kshs,
32500 from i
bencliciarics. Recovery
of funds is ongoing

These are beneficiarics
of the COVID-19 CT
whose  data showed
multiple M-Tesa
accounts  which  were
registered with different
namies and  telephone
numbers but with the
same 11} namber. The
payment service

Chgoing

Ongoing

June 2024

June 2024
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Long Outstanding
current partion of
Receivables from
Exchamure
Transaclions Kshs
16,330,090

Basis for
Conclusion

Supplementary
Appropriation —
Approved
ilemized budget
for Kshs
222859755 not
provided

provider, Safaricom. had
been tasked to wverify
duplications in data for
heneticiaries paid
through M-Pesa during
implementation of the
intervention, The
Clouncil initiated
measwes  through il
officers o recover the
funds from individuals

wh Fraudulently
registercd  and  received
mulliple PHVITICTILS,

Recovery of  Kshs,
288,000 is ongoing

The Council has been
recovering the
outstanding funds owed
by 47 buosinesses that
woers paid  dircetly by
procuring entities wuder
the LPO  financing
pt’{'li-._':l'H.TI'I'I'I'II.J. MI..‘:HHLI'I'G."L Liy
recover these funds have
been pul in place, these
include the issuance of
demand  letters  and
nezotiating Payinent
plans  with  defaulters.
Ot of Kshs, 16,530,000
the Council recovered
Kshs, 856,400 during
the Fiancial yedr
2021722, The debl
recovery efforts  are
onpoing,

The Kshs 222859755
was  brought forward
funds from FYZ2020.21
duc 1o late receipt of
fiinds afler the
EF¥2020.21 had closed,
The lunds were for 3
vears Aundil lees, Cash
transfer and  Albinism
progranime expeses
Lhal W carried
lorward to FY2021.22,

Ongoing

Resalved

Juee 2024
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Status of Severcly
Diisahled Persons

Arrears Lo 124604
Peisans with
Severe Disabilities
—Hsh 211,136,000

The approved itemized
budget for 202021 and
Approved workplan for
F¥2021.22 showing
itemized aclivities was
provided.

The issues noted by the
Audit relate to delavs in
the {ollovwing processes;
& Case managoment 1o
update  beneliciary
details including
carcgiver  changes
and exit of deceased

benefioiaries,
& Hetargeling of
beneficiaries 145k

migrated o the
account-based

maode] due 10
significant  issues
warranling

cellecting afresh of
househald data.

= Replacement of
deceased, exited and
Lnbraced
benefciaries.

These processes  ale
coordinated by the
Directorate  of Social
Assistunce  twough  the

Consalidacd Cash
Transter Programme
bdanagement

Information System. The
Couneil 15 waorking
closely with the
Dhirecloraie oy address all
oulstanding issues.

2487 beneliciaries were
reinstated back to the
payroll during TY
202122 increasing the
tatal beneficiaries from
34.536 in FY20200.21 1o
7023 in PY2021.22

The  Counetl  received
Kshs, 5705 million for
Quarters 3 and 4 on 5th
and 6th July 2021 after
the TY 2020/21 had
closed. Kshs.

Chngoing

Ongoing

June 2023

June 2023
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Basis for
Conclusion

Reinstatement of
Persons with
Severe Disabilities
Cash lransier

Persons with
Albinizm Support
Program

Lack of an
Approved Persons
with Albinism
Program
implementation
manual

211,136,000 relerred by
the audit report Is part of
this amount which iz an
ealitlement o 12,464
persons  wilh  severe

disabilities under the
cash  transfer pogram.
The process ol

reinstating  the 12464
beneficiaries is ongoing,

S0 far 2487  were
Teinslatced dunng
Fy2021.22 and 9977
will be

reinstated/replaced in
PY¥2022.23  and  their

arrcars paid,

The exércist o reinstate
3,072 lhua Jamin
Programime heneficiaries
1 cwrrently  underway,
supporied by the
Direclorale ol Social
Assislance  which s

coordinating the
migration of

benehciaries to the new
paymenl  conlraclt  with
six service providers.

S0 far, the PWSD-CT
programme pavroll has
mereased  tom 34294
lor July/Oclober 202
payiment eyele w 37.023
in  March-June 2022
payment eyvele. a prowth
ol 2,729 heneficiaries,
Reinstatement of
beneficiaries is ongoing,

The manual has been
proparcd

aperationalised

Alex Munyerc

and  Senior Disabilites

Services Officer

Ongoing

Resolved

Jume 2023
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i Weal Monitoring
and Evaluation
Coatrols

iii Crver supply of

Sunscreen lotions
1o Selecred
Hospitals

v Laoss of [08
Hunscreen Lotions

¥ Expired Stock of
Sunsereoen Lotion

37| Page

Tl Persons with
Albinism manual
proavides mechanism of
m&E, The Commncil has
printed new hin cards
with serial numbers.

The Couneil has
developed Albmizm
Progamme  MIS W
TEgister beneficiaries,
track the distribution of
stmsereen  lotlons  and
changes in beneficinry
nlrmation including
[ocation.

The Conncil has writlen
to the two facilities to
explain the
circumsiainces under
which the lotions were
unaceounted for,
Further, the Couneil will
mprove the monitoring
ol sunsercen lotion
distribution and uptake
through the programime
MIS  as  mentioned
above,

The programime has put
in place stmtegies 1o
eliminale the expicy of
lotions through
improved  mobilization
of beneticiaries and the
development of an MIS
Ly supporl  programme
implementation

activities. In the current
finanicial vear (2022727,
the Couneil has
budgeted Kshs 200,000
far  cach of the 47
Counties 1o support the
mobilization of
heneficiaries to collect
sunsereen  lotioms o d
Limely manncr,

Resolved

Resalved

Omngoing Jure 2023

Resolved
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Guidance Notes:
(i} Use the same reference numbers as contained in the external andil report;

{i1)  Cbtain the “Tssuc/Observalion” and “management comments”, required above, from final external audit
report that is signed by Manggement;

(iify Defore approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Poiol persoms within your
entity responsible for implementation of each issue;

(iv) Indicate the status of “Resolved” or “Not Resolved™ by the date of submitting this report 1o National

Treasury.

Mr, Tarun Maalim ITassan
Executive Director

me”m}q' (Tbl }/ﬂ” Date.. 2N 9% A9 3
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XIV. APPENDIX I: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES
Break down of Translers from the State Department of Social Protection

FY 2021/22 - B
Recurrent Grants o '

| Bank Statement Date | Amonnt (Ks hs) Financial Year
17097202 I 368,750,000  2021/22
07/02/2022 ; 368,750,000 2021/22
P 090512022 | 368,750,000 202122
DRAOTI2022 368,750,000 | 202122
| Total L475,000,000
Development G rants | e E .
Bank Statement Date Amount {Kshs) " Financial Vear
a— 29/09/2021 100,000,000 2021422
Total 100,000,000 N

The above amounis have been communicated to and reconciled with the Head of Accounting Unit, State
Department [or Social Protection, Senior Citizens and Special Programmes through letter Ref No.
NCPWINFIN/GS VOL X1 (79) dated 23" August 2022,
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XV. APPENDIX 2: RECORDING OF TRANSFERS FROM OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

Diat |
s E Wihiere Revordedrecwrnined
] received
Mame of 1he Natue: T -
; : 1 . Statement of ) Ohlhiers - A
P Diiar ws per bank |Recurrent! Tutnl Amount - i Capital |Defeered . i Talal Transfers
Transferdiee the funds 1 Finanelal Heceivibles \mmsd be : ]
statement |Development! |KES Fund Tneame oo |durine the Yenr
Performance spevilic
Uithers -
IeEHIL I]e.:|'_|i|r|n1;||| ki
¥, 730, L Ta, 3 * - . 1 h;

Socl Preszciinn 17T | Pecurmen RSN 05T 45,700
Sinee Depurtrent fr

10,000,000 [RCERRAERTIN] - . _ 3 i
Sacul Protection Fpazl  Develpment 3 ' | IO
Sdace Depadivent S ]

AaR 750,000 8RS [ = = 2 z i
Socil Promeclion 0FamEe [Recomenl Biral e T
State Depantment i .

i Bl 75 - - - - AGEA0
Saciel Proteetion o002 [Recuent FoB, 250000 [ Ged, 750 000 FOE YA 00
State Dopamiment E i ] F
ol Promrtion PR A AR FI000 | REH, TS0 DR = . . o 36 750,000
Tuiul 1375000400 | 1.573,000,{HHE - - - | LETS 06,000

40| Page NCPWI- Annnal Report & Financial Statements 2021/20122




f'- ~ Kenya @

'1"‘!'1. ¥ NIPWD
L3

Vagrf




Mational Council for Persons with Disabilities
Opp. ABC Place, Along Waiyaki Way,
P.Q. Box 66577-00800, Mairohi

NCPWD

W nNePwD
& nNcPwD




